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Overview

Introduction

YouGov is the authoritative
measure of public opinion

and consumer behaviour. It is
YouGov's ambition to supply

a live stream of continuous,
accurate data and actionable
insight into what people are
thinking and doing all over the
world, all of the time, so that
companies, governments and
institutions can better serve the
people that sustain them.

yougov.com
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QOverview

Operational highlights

» Group revenue Increased by 8%

= Adjusted operating profit up by 7%

» Adjusted profit before tax up by 13%
» Adjusted eamings per share up by 14%

» The Group generated £6 9m in cash
from operations (before paying
Interest and tax) (2012 £4 9m), Good
cash conversion at 116% of adjusted
operating profit (2012 88%)

» Net cash balances of £6 /m
(2012 £7 2m) after making £2m
of earn-out payments for previous
acquisitions

= Dividend increased by 20% to
0 6p per share

= Current trading 1n Iine with the Board's
expectations

» Revenue from Data Products and
Services up by 17%, now represents
24% of total

= Brandindex revenue increased by
22% to £56m

s Omnibus revenue increased by 20%
to £76m

= Revenue from Custom Research up
by 5%, ahead of the global market

= US revenues increased by 8% to
£20 8m but adjusted operating profit
fell by 15% to £2 3m

» UK revenue up by 11% to £174m,
adjusted operating profit up 19%

= Middle East revenue grew by 22%
reflecting expansion across regional
markets

= German performance improved with
adjusted operating profit up by 36%
to £0 9m

= Nordic turnaround in progress with
cost reductions achieved of £0 5m
on an annualised basis

» French revenue doubled as planned

Key financials
GRAPH GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED
Reported operating profit Reparted profit before tax

£15m £15m

(2012 £0 8m)

(2012 £0 4m)

1 Adjusted operating profitis defined as group operating profit before amartsaton of
niangibles impairment charge and exceptional items in the year 10 31 July 2013
amortisation of Intangrbles was £3 3m (2012 £4 4m) and exceplional costs were £1 2m
(2012 £0 5m) Adjusted profit before tax and earnings per share arg calculated based

on the adjusted operating profit
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Overview

YouGov at a glance

YouGov plc is an international full-service market research agency which is considered the
pioneer of market research through online methods. Our suite of syndicated, proprietary data
products includes: Brandindex, the daily brand perception tracker; SoMA, the social media
audience analysis tool; and SixthSense reports which provide comprehensive market
intelligence on a range of sectors. The market-leading YouGov Omnibus provides a fast and
cost-effective service for obtaining answers to research questions from both national and
selected samples. Our custom research business conducts a wide range of quantitative and
qualitative research, tailored by our specialist teams to meet our clients’ specific requirements.

WEHAVEAPANEL [
OF SOME REMOVED

3 million

people worldwide across 33 countnes

THIS YEARWE OUR PANELLISTS
SERVED OVER COMPLETED

17 million

25000 12 monthe 1o 31 July 2013
clents worldwide (an increase of 13% in the
last year)
“ YOUGOV HAS BEEN
NAMED ONE OF THE

YouGov Is the most quoted WORLD’S TOP 25

research company In the

UK In the last year, YouGov RESEARCH COMPANIES

was quoted more than twice BY THE RESPECTED

2 0 IMAGE
REMOVED

OFFICES

waorldwide, In 10 countries
covering the UK, Europe,
the Nordics, the Middle East
and the USA

IMAGE
REMOVED

511

employees worldwide

IMAGE
REMOVED

as often as any other market HONOMICHL GLOBAL
h the UK
researcher in the ,, TOP 25 REPORT 2013

Allfigures as at 31 Juty 2013
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Overview
Business model and strategy

Mhannow

Our strategy for growth

Mission statement

it 1s YouGov's ambition to supply a live stream of continuous,
accurate data and actienable insight into what people are thinking
and doing all over the world, all of the time, so that companies,
governments and inshtutions can better serve the people that
sustain them

Core business model

Established in the UK in 2000 as the first online pollster, YouGov
quickly developed a very strong brand widely recegnised for
accurate political opirion polling Qur highly-responsive propretary
panel and strong reputation opened the doors for YouGov to
expand quickly beyond the public service sector to much larger
and more profitable commercial market research actvity YouGov's
success was also boosted by our aptitude for developing
Innovative high-margin research products, and our sector expertise
that addresses the strategic research needs of both large
corporate and public sector organisations

The key to our business I1s our panel We have developed a number
of procedures for recruting, validating and sampling that enable
us to use internet samples to represent the population as a whaole
We believe that nternet research 1s as accurate as tradiional
methods, while being faster and more flexible and thereby freeing
up resources for the vital interpretation and implementation

of resulis

Expand our
geographic
footprint

Our

Boost
our public
profile

key strategic
objectives

Today, YouGov has propnetary oniine panels in 33 countnes
worldwide and we continue to engage in opportunities to take our
online market research core business model - of a strong brand
and panel, coupled with innovatve products and sector expertise
-- to new markets

Nnarating raviaw

Strategy for growth

A key objective for the Group is to iIncrease the proportion of
revenue from data products and services over the medium term
and brng these closer to panty with custom research We are
focusing on growing revenue from our core product suite across all
our existing geographies This rvolves bnnging to market new
products, as well as continuing to mnovate with new products

In addition to making targeted investments in growing and
expanding our syndicated data products and services suite,

we are also continuing {0 explore opperiunities to expand our

core model geographically

fRnvarnancra

Our five key strategic objectives

= Grow our syndicated products suite

« Integrate custorn research and syndicated data
+ Enhance our user expenence

» Boost our public profile

« Expand our geographic footpant

Financial ctatamante

Integrate
custom
research and
syndicated
data

five

Enhance
our user
experience

Additinnal infarmatinn !
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Overview

Business model and strategy

Grow our syndicated products suite

A key objective for the Group is to increase the proportion of revenue from data products
and services over the medium term and bring these closer to parity with custom research.
In addition to to our regular Omnibus service, we have a suite of syndicated, proprietary
data products which includes Brandindex, SoMA and SixthSense reports.

Brandindex

BrandIndex, YouGov's flagshup brand inteligence
service, tells our clients what the world thinks of therr
brands and therr competitors at any given moment
and helps our clients undersiand the ink between
therr media and achvertising efforts, brand perception,
and consumer response Brandindex data 1s updated
daily and holds up to six years of histoncal data about
our client and competitor brands, which is all instantly
available to our clients through our user-fnendiy
Brandindex portal

Brandlindex 15 currently avalable in the US, UK,
Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Japan, Mexico,
Netherands, Norway, Saud) Arabia, Sweden, United
Arab Emrrates, Brazil and China Every day we survey
multitudes of consumers across these terntones —
conducting over 2 5 million Brandindex interviews
every year — about thousands of brands across
dozens of industry segments

The latest version (6 0) of Brandindex includes
enhancements for weekend data collection as well

as weekday coverage and an extended range of
valuable information from consumers, ncluding media
awareness and expected and reported purchase
behaviour

This year we also launched an extension of the
Brandindex service ~ BrandIndex CategoryView

This additional senice provides an even deeper
Investigabon of a given market sector (e g telecoms
ordining}, focusing on product ownership, spending
patterns and brand switching behaviour and more

It provides addional msight for brand and business
decision-makers and also for financial irmvestors, such
as fund managers and analysts

To-date, Categoryview has been introduced for
selected sectors in the US, UK and China and 15
being marketed nitially to the investment commiurty,
especially inthe US

Omnibus

This financial year marked the tenth birthday of
Omnibus, YouGov's very first product YouGov's
Omnibus 1s now the market-leading online ommibus
senvice In the UK and In recent years has been
extended to our French, German, Middle East, Nordic
and US operations Today, the senace can provide
clients with data from some 20 countres.

Omnibus surveys are run daily, providing natonally
representative responses to clients within a 24 or 48
hour turnaround

The size and diversity of the YouGov panel has also
enabled us to expand our Omnibus offenng to include
a number of selected target samples Omnibus
segmental services include [nternational, Children
and Parent, Shoppers, B2B, Independent Financial
Advisors and Teachers We also run regular Omnibus

surveys coverng “influental” audiences in the UK
Including Members of Parllament We recenily
launched the OmniDeepDive service where we
provide professionally moderated online focus groups
with a selection of Omnibus respondents

The key areas of growth this year, in addition to
faunching in the US, were the International and B28
Omnibus and both solutions wall be a majer focus of
our FY 14 strategy for Omnibus. Also planned is the
expansion of the offenngs in existing Omnibus
markets and rollout of the service to newty opened
YouGov terntones ncluding China
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SoMA

SoMA 1s our revoluttonary social media analysis
tool which allows our clients to measure what their
target audience I1s hearing about them on social
media With SoMA, YouGov bnngs research ngour
to the world of understanding social media
effectiveness, providing valuable insights into the
“customer journey” SoMA Is being incorpeorated
by commercial and agency chients into their wider
research data suites

SoMAs foundations lie In the representative
samples of YouGov panellists who have given us
permission to access and monitor therr private
Facebook and Twitter feeds SoMA collects and
analyses the tweets and posts appeanng on our

panellists social media network feeds o provide
audience metncs that can be extrapolated for the
UK Facebook and Twitter populations at large

By overlaying YouGov's propnetary demographic
data with comments made on these social media
platforms, SoMA provides real meaning to the
noise of social media

The latest stage of SoOMA development has been
the tying In of Brandindex data, thereby allowing
us to measure the impact of social media
campaigns on brand perception and purchase
intent to create real world ROI

SixthSense

SixthSense provides comprehensive market
reports packed with onginal consumer research
data and analysts, supplemented by information
on market sizes, trand analysis, competitive
benchmarking and market forecasts

Central to the SixthSense model is using the
YouGov proprietary online pane! to identify mche
demographics We work closely with clients

to identify areas in a market that are quickly
changing and produce up-to-date insights into
changing consumer behaviour and athitudes

Today, our market intelligence report portfohio
consists of over 300 report tittes covenng 1,000+
topic areas ranging across the finance,
technology, retail, utilities, media, legal services
and food & dnnk sectors YouGov produces
reports 1n multiple countries including the UK,
Sweden, Denmark, France, Germany and the US
Reports can be bought as single copies, as a
package or, Increasingly, for an annual
subscription covenng multiple topics and reports
SixthSense has over 500 clients

HEAT

The Household Economic Activity Tracker (HEAT)

1s YouGov's economic confidence tracker HEAT i1s
available in the UK, US and China and can provide
early incications of changes to both the national and
global macroeconomic environment Essentially,
HEAT I1s an early warning system for changes in key
economic indicators before consumer behaviour
feeds through to official economic measures

HEAT examines over 70 economic indicators
including change in household income, jobr secunty,
business actvity, house prices, workplace actmity
levels, government confidence, inflation perceptions
and expectations, debt and borrowing, propensity to
save and wilingness to spend Subscnbers receve
a first-to-market, monthly report produced by expert
economic analysts who review the findings within the

context of the wider economy and key poliical and
economic events and provide analysis not only of
current condiions but also of future outlook in 2013
we went into partnership wath the Centre for
Economics and Business Research in the UK, who
are providing additional expert macroeconomic
analysis Unlike other trackers and indices with
significant processing tme or quarterty or annual
results, our HEAT reports are delivered within days
of month-end and we also update the online
dashboard throughout the month

Nuarnnow

Ninaratinm reuaas

Rravarnanca I

Finanral etatamante
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Overview

Business model and strategy

Integrate custom research
and syndicated data

YouGov’s panel centric approach enables us to provide clients with the information they require
on opinions and behaviours using the data that our panellists continuously provide to us,
supplemented as necessary with tailored surveys or questions added to our regular surveys.
We have been significantly expanding and organising our Profile Data Library (PDL) and, more
and more, we are integrating this “connected data” with our custom research to provide
stronger and more innovative solutions to our clients.

Lynx: campaign effectiveness

Q- On a scale of 0 to 10 (10 being the most posttive)
In March 2013 YouGov produced a report for The Guardiar's how would you describe your overall impression
Changing Media Sumnmit, looking into current mecdha consumption of Lynx?

patterns, profiles of audiences on different platforms and media

types, and the effectiveness of advertisng across platiorms, using ~ fA = Rated Lynx 8, 9 or 10

the Lynx Apollo Space Academy campaign as a case study

in January 2013, the deodorant brand Lynx launched a competion
to send 20 people into space as part of the campaign for its Apollo
product line To publicise the compethion the campaign undertook
activity across TV, online and outdoor media YouGov examined the
effectiveneass of the advertising campaign

We used connected data — from our existing “Profile Data Library™
(PDL), a bespoke survey, media consumption data and medra plan CHARTS
datz - to track brand perception based on real exposure to the REMOVED
advertising campaign We examined three samples of
respondents based on the campaign's media plan

1 A UK nationally representative sample

2 A sample of people we knew toc have been exposed to the
TV adverts

3 Asample of people we knew o have been exposed 1o the

campaign through social meda The results of this study illustrate that relying on recall to track

We used a logistic regressiorn model to take into account the the effectiveness of media campaigns is not enough anymore
chfferent attnbutes of the samples in terms of demographics and By looking at advertising effectveness using exposure (not recall)
whether ar not they had ever previousty bought Lynx products and using connected data to understand audiences, YouGov can
The results of our study showed that those exposed to the TV finalty solve John Wanamaker's notonous problem (“Half the money
campaign were significantly more hkely than a nationally I spend on advertising 1s wasted, the trouble 1s | don’t know which
representative sample to express a positive impression of Lynx half"y Leveraging the work done for this study, we now have a new

media plannng and buying tool in developrnerit
Unsurpnsingly, those who specifically recaffed seeing the Lynx ads 'apianning and buying n P

tended to have a positive impression of the brand However, those
known to have watched TV programmes containing the Lynx ads
were significantly more likely to express a posrtive overall
impression, irrespechve of recall In other words, we saw a
significant uphftin brand percepuon of Lynx among those exposed
to the ad but did not recall seeing it
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TSB: new brand

The creation of the new TSB Bank by Lloyds Banking Group
followed a ruling by the European Commussion aimed at bnnging
more competiion to the UK banking market and promoting greater
separation between retall and investment banking Following their
contribution to YouGov's Public Trust in Banking report, Lloyds
Banking Group approached YouGov to help them develop and
refine the brand poswioning for TSB Bank, ahead of its launch

Straightaway we were able to share with them a wealth of exising
and available data and insight through our pnor work on reputation,
our bank of knowledge of the industry via our SxthSense market
Inteligence reports, our Household Economic Actvity Tracker
(HEAT) and our continuous monttonng of the financial services
sector through Brandindex We also found that we already held

a wealth of data on some of the customer groups about whom

Lloyds Banking Group were seeking insight, in our Profile Data
Library (PDL)

Building on this existing foundation, our qualitaiive specialists
conducted a number of online and face-to-face interviews across
the country, covening all potential customer groups, explonng the
key elements of the new positioring proposed for TSB Finally,
having identified the most viable pillars, we then conducted a
quantitative study to further test the propositions

The results of YouGov's study were presented to executive
management at Lloyds Banking Group and the new bank and
contnbuted to decisions regarding the brand positioning for TSB

flydubai. brand positioning review

Established by the Government of Dubai in 2008 and launched
In 2009, flyduban has a fleet of mare than 30 brand new Boeing
737-800 awrcraft and flies to mere than 65 destinations across the
Middle East, Subcontinent, Southeast Europe, Russia, Ukraine,
Central Asia and North & East Afnca

In September 2012, to further consolidate its market posittion,
flydubal commussioned YouGov to gain a deeper undersianding
of its customer profile, uncaver what drives “core” customers to
use flydubai and to explore how flydubail 1s posihoned in the
market vis-a-vis other arlines

As outhined below, the study required a two-phase exploration
involving quantitative research followed by a qualitatve phase

1 The quantitative phase involved an online survey with a total
of 15,040 respondents successfully interviewed This initial
stage of research was vital to profile flydubar's customer base

demographically, behaviourally and attitudinally Based on therr
responses, customers were then segmented to help flydubas
dentify its “core” customers

2 The follow up qualtative phase involved 8 face-to-face focus
groups with flydubar “core” consumers This element of the
study allowed flydubai to explore how this critical target
audience percenves the brand vs its competitors as well as
to 1identify the "needs” answered by each of these brands

Uitimately, insights gained through YouGov's research were
leveraged by flydubai to develop a strategic brand positioning
and further consolidate the ailine’s position In an increasingly
competitive market

Telekom Deutschiand: product design

In September 2012, Telekom Deutschland approached YouGov
to help them understand how to best optimise the design of therr
flagship cable media bundle service, Entertain by Telekom
Deutschland Over 2 millon German househelds currently
subscnbe to Entertain by Telekom Deutschland and this number
1s nstng rapidly year-on-year

For this study, YouGov conducted online interviews with several
different sample groups, including existing and potential
customers The interviews explored recent television use, the
attractiveness of different entertainment packages and the
attractiveness of add-on services such as addivonal Pay TV
channels and the Entertain-to-go service which allows wiewers to

access premium content on mobile devices We then applied
conjoint anatysis methodology to the results to uncover the
optimal compositions of service bundles in terms of prnicing
and customer appeal

The results of this study helped Telekom Deutschland to optimise
their Entertain by Telekom Deutschiand price positioning according
to customer’s and target customer’s needs, to optimise take-up
rates from prospective customers, and also gave them an
estimation of future market potential Following on from this study,
Tetekom Deutschland commissioned YouGov to conduct a further
study examining the pncing policy of their media recever product

Olvarnona

Mnaratinm paviow

MNAvarnanca l

Einancial etatamante
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Business model and strategy

Enhance our user experience

Integrated data, and user experience in producing that data, are two parts of the same process.
It follows that YouGov's success depends on us keeping panel members engaged and

responsive. Our current panel engagement activity includes two recent innovations, Opigram
and “You Made the News!” alerts.

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
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Opigram

Cpgram is YouGov's “Wikipedia of opiion™ Opigram is a new
technology for recording and measunng opinion online which sits
on YouGov's panel-facing websites Opigram allows YouGov
panellists to proactively share therr opinion en anything they like,
whenever they like — and for it to be counted Through a
combination of ratings, inputing opinions, and agreeing or
disagreeing with ather paneliists, panellists build up a 360 degree
profile of therr tastes, habits and interests {their personal Opigram)
Al the same time, opinions come together to form detailed
pen-portraits (Opigrams) of brands, movies, celebrties, books
and much more

Developed in partnership with CoEditor Limited, Opigram i1s

an integral part of YouGov's panel engagement and website
strategies It 1s designed to keep our panelists actvely engaged,
regularly and consistently, as opposed to them having to wait to
receive a survey to express their opinion It provides people with
a way to record therr opinions and expenences that 1s organised
to be useful to them, and to other people The platform also offers
a social network via which panellists can get to know one another
over a shared opinion, hobby or passion

You Made the News!

Our global panel of respondents join YouGov in order to have ther
say Whether the subject 1s Government policy, a new product, or
the fortunes of a particutar brand, we know panellists engage with
YouGov because they know our research moves the news agenda
Internal research also shows that the stronger the “feedback loop”
between a YouGov paneliist expressing an apinion and then seeing
the results In print, the happier — and more engaged - they are

Building on this insight, towards the end of this financial year we
began trialling a new nstant alert that provides aimost real-ime
feedback to panellists Gong forward, when a news article which
references survey results to which they contnbuted 1s published,
panellists will receve an alert informing them that “You Made

the News""

Beta testing using our UK pane! and YouGov's own news content
shows that highlighting the effect of panellists’ opimons in this way
correlates with a significant iIncrease (up to 30%) in panellist
responsiveness Clearly, YouGov panellists appreciate that their
views really do shape the newsl!

For the next stage of the project we will begin to circulate links not
only to YouGov's own news content, but also external press articles
featunng YouGov polling results From this, we expect to see further
significant improvements 1N panel responsiveness and overall
engagement It1s our intention to rolt the project out across all

our key terntones dunng the next year

:
£
g
¢
As the heart of YouGov's panel engagement strategy, the next year i
will be an ambrtious one for Opigram Development plans include E
functionalty for shanng profile pages and activity on social media, g
as well as the capability for Iive poling and live results Opigram 2
data will also be made avatable for commercial use across the c

company
q
£
a
£
q
g
¢

IMAGE
REMOVED
$
H
£
&
n
%
5
[N
a
13
u
IMAGE
REMOVED

£
<
L
E
£
£
E:
£
%
e
-]




1 O YouGov
Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Overview

Business model and strategy

Boost our public profile

YouGov'’s reputation for providing accurate and authoritative information is enhanced by
the strength of our public profile. YouGov is the pollster for a number of the world's leading
media organisations including The Times, The Sun, The Sunday Times, Huffington Post,
The Economist, Al Aan TV, MediaQuest, MetroXpress, Berlingske, Die Zeit and Bild. We also
undertake strategic partnerships with academic institutions and media organisations for a

variety of events and projects.

YouGov-Cambridge

In 2011, the Department of Poliics and International Stuches
(POLIS) at Cambndge University established a partnership with
YouGov to facilitate collaboration between academic experts and
opinion research professionals The partnership’s aim s to find
innovative ways to use public opinion data within academic
programmes and to produce research that informs the public
policy debate This partnership has proven to be very successful,
generating research on a wide range of topics, iniated and
analysed by staff and students from POLIS and other parts

of the University, with examples including studies of poliical
representation, chimate change policy and foreign policy

YouGov and POLIS recently agreed to extend therr partnership
through the YouGov-Cambndge Programime of Public Opinion
Research This programme will continue to encourage staff and
students at Cambndge to use YouGov research, while YouGov
professionals will contribute to some of the teaching programmes
in POLIS including the Master's Degree in Public Palicy (MPP)
launching at the University in October 2013

in addition to ongoing research, the partnership has since
developed a programme of annual conferences, held in London
and Cambndge In March 2013, YouGov and POLIS partnered with
The Guardian to hold a one-day forum on the themes of “Public
Trustin Banking” and “Reversing or Advancing Thatcher's Legacy”,
in September 2013, the annual forum was held on the theme of
“Public Opinion and the Evolving State™ Our event partners
included The Guardan, the Bntish Council and the Royal United
Services Institute These conferences have become a regular
fodure for Cambndge academics to interact with opinion research
professionals and practitioners from the public and pnvate sectors

Follow YouGov-Cambndge on Twitter

@YouGovCam

USA Presidential Election

The 6 Novermnber 2012 USA Presidential Election provided a great
opportuntty for YouGov to increase its brand presence in the US
YouGov undertakes regular polling of poliical sentment in
Amenca, including our annual Cooperative Congressional Election
Study (CCES) which involves a consortium of universities, our
weekly polling for The Economist (now in its fifth year) and our
more recent partnership with the Huffington Post which sees

our polling widget sitting on one of the largest news sites on the
internet For the Presidential Election year, we expanded our
politcal polling efforts with two new partnerships

We joined forces with Microseft to undertake live poliing dunng
the Presidential Debates using the Xbox platform in order to target
young adult voters We asked Xbox users approximately 70
questions per debate, with aver 30,000 respondents welghing

In per queshion

We also partnered with CBS News to produce the CBS News/
YouGov Electoral Vote Tracker, one of the most extensive opinion
polling projects ever conducted We interviewed 36,000 Amencan
YouGov panellists, across 25 states, three times - once In
September at the beginning of the campaign, agan in October
after the first Presidential Debate, and finally a third tme on the
eve of the election

The survey included all the battleground states, and also the
largest states such as New York, California and Texas You(Gov's
final prediction was one of the most accurate out of all polisters
covenng the election We believe that the demonstrable supenor
accuracy of online research methods in this election has clearty
tilted the debate over US poliical poling in favour of online

IMAGE
REMOVED
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BIG-STATE
BRITAIN?

UK VOTERS’
SYMPATHY
FOR THE POOR

Bntons are less inclined than the French
to regard the workless as indulged,
readier than the Germans to pay taxes to
help them, and decidedly less relaxed
about top salanes than the Amencans,
according to a major transnational study
by the academic thinktank YouGov-
Cambndge

The Guardian, 15 Apnl 2013

{4

HVER ANDEN DANSKER
HAR KORT FOR STARKT
FOR NYLIG

Halvdelen af danskerne har kart for
steerkt pa de danske veje inden for den
seneste maned —mens kun 17 procent
aldng har gjort det, ffalge en ny
undersegelse foretaget af YouGov

metroXpress, 23 May 2013

WOMEN OWN MAJORITY
OF UK’S TABLETS FOR
FIRST TIME

Despite the stereotype of gadget-fixated
males, a new study from YouGov has
found that for the first ime the majonty
of tablet devices in the UK are owned
by women

The Independent, 18 July 2013

SUBWAY, WENDY'S, CHIPOTLE OFFER BEST
VALUE FOR QUALITY, CONSUMERS SAY

Is it possible to find out which fast food
chan offers customers the best bang for
their buck? The statisticians at YouGov
Brandindex seem to think so They used
data from their daily tracking index of
consumer perception of fast food chains

Huffington Post, 25 October 2012

LA CROISSANCE,
PRIORITE DES FRANGCAIS

Une large majonte des Frangais estime
que la France et I'Union européenne
dowent relancer la croissance plutdt que
de chercher & respecter I'objectif d'un
dehert mité a 3% du PIB, selon un
sondage de YouGov

Le Figaro, 14 March 2013

{1

THE X FACTOR FINAL: YOUR BIG
VERDICT ON WHO WILL WIN

Nicole was ecstatic to see both of her
remaining acts jont favountes to win at
Ladbrokes  But there was Iittie joy for
two of her fellow judges as fans In our
exclusive survey — conducted by

pollsters YouGov — gave their verdiclts

The Sun, 7 December 2012

RED TROUSERS ARE
OFFICIALLY A FASHION FAUX
PAS, YOUGOV POLL FINDS

A pall by respected researchers
YouGov  found that just 12 per cent of
the population think well of men in red

The Telegraph, 31 July 2013

UAE AMONG HAPPIER MENA NATIONS

The “Happiness and Wellbeing in the Mena" survey conducted by Bayt com and
YouGov, an independent research and consulting organisation, has revealed that

respondents in the UAE are highly satisfied with life in general

On the other hand,

the highest dissatisfaction noted by respondents 1s with financial independence across
all three regions (GCC, Levant, and North Afnca)

The Guif Today, 23 July 2013

DEUTSCHLANDS BELIEBTESTE
GROSSSTADTE

Berlin 1st der coolste Standort
Deutschlands? Vielleicht — aber wohnen
wollen dort viele eher nicht Lieber in
Hamburg ist die beliebteste Grostadt
Deutschlands Bel einer reprasentativen
Umfrage des Meinungsforschungs
instituts YouGov

Bid, 19 Apnl 2013

{1

RETURN OF THE FEELGOOD FACTOR AS
UK PLC PICKS UP THE PACE

A report published today by polling
experts YouGov and the Centre for
Economics and Business Research
think tank shows the mood among UK
households 1s the most optimistic since
Apni 2010

Daily Mail, 15 July 2013
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Overview

Business model and strategy

Expand our geographic
footprint

The YouGov Group has 20 offices
worldwide, covering the UK,
Europe, the Nordics, the Middle
East and the USA.

During FY13, YouGov began
establishing a panel in China
— see page 18 for more details

USA UK
Revenue Revenue
£20.8m £17.4m
Adjusted operating profit Adjusted operating profit
£2.3m £4.4m
No. of employees No. of employees
107 161
Offices Offices
6 1
Panel size Panel size
1,704,900 442100

All figures as at 31 July 2013
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MAP
REMOVED
Middle East Germany Nordic France
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
£7.3m £9.4m £8.5m £0.3m
Adjusted operating profit Adjusted operating profit Adjusted operating profit Adjusted operating loss

£1.5m

No of employees

£0.9m

No. of employees

£0.3m

No of employees

(£01m)

No. of employees

65

108

65

5

Offices Offices Offices Offices
Panel size Panel size Panel size Panel size

326,400

140,500

101,700

83,300

Muarnouw
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Qverview

Charrman’s statement
for the year ended 31 July 2013

1

In the year ended 31 July 2013,
we are pleased to report that
Ré’;jlgf/ED YouGov has delivered good
financial performance, in line
with the Board’s expectations.”

Introduction

In the year ended 31 July 2013, we are pleased to report that

YouGov has detivered a good financial performance, in line with the GRAPH GRAPH
Board's expectations The Group's reverue has once again grown REMOVED REMOVED

well ahead of the global market research industry and we have
also made further progress towards our stated goal of increasing
our focus on real-tme research based on our increasingly global
online panel Our profits and earmngs per share have increased
while we have continued to invest in developing our products

and technologies as well as entenng new markets Given this
performance, together with our continued robust financial position,

the Board 1s recommending an increase of 20% n the dividend
payable to shareholders GRAPH GRAPH

This year's revenue of £62 6m was 8% higher than the prior year REMOVED REMOVED
Significantly, revenues in the second half year grew by 15%,
compared to the same penod in 2011/12, as we converted the
strong sales reported at the intenm stage The Group's adjusted
operating profit Increased by 7% to £6 Om, in ine with its revenue
growth We continued to ighten our operating expense ratio, by 1
percentage paint, although gross margins fell slightly due to higher
external data collection costs as more international off-pane! work
was conducted Our adjusted profit before tax rose by 13% and
adjusted earnings per share by 14% reflecting the strong cperating
performance and higher net finance income

1 Adjusted operating profitis defined as group operating profit before amorusation of
ntangibles, Imparment charge and excepticnal items In the year to 37 July 2012
amorlisation of intangibles was £3 3m (2012 £4 4m) and exceptional costs were £12m
{2012 £0 5m) Adjusted profil Defore tax and earnings per share are calculated based
on the adjusted operating profit
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The success of our strategy of Investing in faster growth from data
products and services was reflected in revenue growth of 17%
from thus part of our business which now accounts for 24% of

the Group's total revenue We are pleased to see these benefits
resulting from our Investments in new and enhanced products as
well as in the people and technology with which to deliver them
Revenue from custom research increased overall by 5%, a growth
rate which 1s In itself above the estimated global market growth rate
of 3% for 2012/13 We believe that our innovations in breaking
down the traditional divide between syndicated and custom
research will enable YouGov to increase further the value that can
be generated from the data that we collect as well as our business
scalability

Given our diversified geographic footpnnt, different regions
performed at varyng speeds as expected

The UK remains the terntory where YouGov's core business model
is most developed UK revenue increased by 11% to £17 4m
reflecting significant new custom business wins among global
corporate and institutional chents as well as contmued growth n
data products and services, especially for our market-leading
Omnibus service The higher revenue fed through to a 19%
mcrease 1n its adjusted operating profits compared to the previous
year, reflecting the scalability of the model

There was a mixed performance in the US which 1s our largest
market by revenue We achieved overall revenue growth of 8%, with
Brandindex continuing to grow strongly and our polling accuracy
for the 2012 Presidential Election helping to iIncrease awareness of
our brand However, US adjusted operating profit was £0 4m lower
at £2 3m compared to £2 7m n the pnor year This was due to
slower growth In the US custom research business in the second
half of the year as two major clients unexpectedly reduced their
activity Following management actions, including cost savings.
mplemented since the year-end, we expect the US custom
business and overall US profitability to be back on course in the
current year

The Middle East reported revenue growth of 22% and adjusted
operating profit growth of 18%, both of which were well ahead of
expectations due to continued new business wins In UAE and m
the Kurdistan region of Irag whose rapid economic development
has created significant opportunites o explott our research model
along with our understanding of the region In Germarny, the
progress reported at the intenm stage was maintaned resulting in
higher profitability and the adjusted operating margin reaching 9%
Our Nordic unit, which as previcusly reported, expenenced
problems in the first half, has undergone a restructunng
programme which started in January 2013, led by an intenm CEC
This addressed the year-on-year revenue decline seen in the first
half and led to cost reductions which will yield annualised savings
of £0 5m These actions should enable the unit to deliver a better

performance In the next financial year Our nascent French
operation achieved Its goal of doubling revenue from the previcus
year through several new BrandIndex contracts and a growing
domestic and international Omnibus business

Dividend

Following the payment of our maiden dividend of O 5p per share
in December 2012, the Board indicated that it intended to follow

a progressive dividend policy 1in subsequent years Having
considered the Group’s performance In the year ended 31 July
2013 and future expectations as well as its financial resources, the
Board 1s pleased to recommend payment of a final dmdend of

0 6p per share n respect of the year ended 31 July 2013, payable
in December 2013 This represents an increase of 20% over the
maiden dvidend paid in 2012

SIGNATURE
REMOVED

Roger Parry
Chaiman

14 October 2013
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Operating review

Chief Executive’s review
for the year ended 31 July 2013

IMAGE
REMOVED

Introduction

In rolling out our strategy, YouGov has delivered a good operational
and financial performance for the year Our investment in data
products and services 1s delivening significant growth whle our
custorn research business 1s also stll growing ahead of the market
YouGov remains the pioneer of real-ime research based on
continuous Interaction with our engaged panel This data enables
us to offer clients cost-effectve and highty accurate insights
through packaged products like our propnetary Brandindex and
our market-leading Omnibus service

Our investment in data products

and services is delivering
significant growth while our
custom research business is
also still growing ahead of the

market.”

GRAPH
REMOVED
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Delivering the growth strategy

Our clearty stated aim is to make our core offenng of opinion data,
denved from our highty responsive panel of respondents, intc a
systemnatic research and marketing platform delvenng data and
related analyses and reports that can be used to plan, manage
and refine all types of campaigns whether they have commercial,
poitical, social or other objectives

In delivering this, we have defined five key strategic objectives
We descnbe these below together with our progress in achieving
them 1n the year under review

Our five
key strategic
objectives

Boost
our public
profile

Enhance
our user
expenence

Grow our suite of data products and services

We made further progress in increasing the proportion of Group
revenue denved from data products and services to bring this
closer to panty with custom research over the medium term Overall
revenue from data products and services grew by 17% to £15m
from £13m in the year ended 31 July 2013

Brandindex, our flagship brand intelligence service, continued

to gain clients globally and achieved 22% revenue growth to £5m
It now serves over 150 subscnbers across all our geographic
units The development of BrandIndex as a currency for brand
measurement has been facilitated by our close collaborations with
leading global media agencies including OMD and Universal
McCann who coniinue to support its global expansion New chent
wins in the year Included Barclaycard, Energizer, Heathrow and
Travelodge Dunng the year, we launched an enhanced version

(6 0) of Brandindex which includes weekend data collection as

well as weekday coverage and an extended range of valuable
information from consumers, including media awareness and
expected and reported purchase behaviour We also launched an
extension of the BrandIndex service — CategoryView This provides
in-depth data on spectiic market sectors (e g telecoms or cining)
focusing on product ownership, spending patterns and brand
switching behaviour It provides additional insight for brand and
business decision-makers and also for financial investers, such as
fund managers and analysts CategoryView has been introduced
for selected sectors 1n the US, UK and China and 1s being
marketed nitally to the investment community, especially in the US

Our Omnibus service, which celebrated its tenth birthday n 2013,
achieved glebal revenue growth of 20% to nearty £8m This refiects
the geographical expansion of the Omnibus service as well as
continued good growth (18%) in the UK where it 1s the clear
market-leader We launched a daily Omnibus in the USA in January
2013, overseen by our Group Omribus Director who 15 now based
in New York, which 1s performing as planned In the US, as well as
in other newer Omnibus terntones such as France and Middle East,
we have successfully begun to buld media and PR agency
relationships in suppart of Omnibus, following the successful UK
mode! New European clients in the year included Money Advice
Service and Henkel, while new US chents included Diffusion PR
and KIND The global ro-out of Omnbus is also enabling us to
service demand for mult-country Omnibus surveys using the
Group’s own panels which we expect will contnbute to future
growth New segmental services covenng specific groups such as
Children and Parents, Shoppers and B2B have also been launched
which will extend the chent base that can be served using the
common Omnibus platform

We have continued to develop ScMA, our measurement tool for
social media audiences which uniquely includes Facebook
messages as well as Twitter, so that chents can apply their own
segmentations 1o data derved from social media This provides
the ability to track social media communications across target
audiences as defined by a given business or organisation SoMA
gives valuable insights into the "customer journey” and Is being
iIncorporated by clients into their wider research data suite

Mearuiow
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Operating review

Chief Executive's review continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Expand our geographic footprint

YouGov already has twenty offices worldwide covenng the USA,
UK, France, Germany, Nordics and the Middle East and our online
panels operate n 33 countries with some 3 million panelhsts
registered on them In mesting our chents’ needs for YouGov's data
we have been expanding our operations across the major global
markets around a repeatable version of our core offenng We aim
1o do this mainty by organic investment but will consider selective
acquistions If these can accelerate our development Qur French
office, which opened two years ago, 1s successfully meeting 1ts
goals Early in 2013, we set up our first panel of Chinese
consumers which has enabled us to launch a Brandindex version
for China to which chents are already subscnbing

Integrate custom research and syndicated data
YouGov's panel centnc approach enables us to provide clients with
the information they require on opinions and behawviours using the
data that our panellists continugusly provide to us, supplemented
as necessary with tallored surveys or questions added to our
regular surveys We have been significantly expanding and
organising our Profile Data Library (PDL) so that this “connected
data” enables our clients to understand people’s attitudes and
consumption decisions This data already feeds into our syndicated
products, for example economic cenfidence data from our
Household Economic Actwity Tracker (HEAT) can be overlaid with
custorner segmentations and Brandindex data can be filtered by
media consumption types More and more, we are integrating this
data with our custom research to make the whole offenng stronger
and have been applying this approach to provide innovatve
solutions to our clients For example, YouGov's precise media
consurmphon data can be used to measure the impact of
advertising that respondents have seen but do not recall Our
innovatve solution was demonstrated at the Guardian’s Changing
Media Summit, In a case study on the advertising campaign for
*Lynx" a well-known personal care product A number of clients,
including RSPB and SHS-Dnnks, are already using these new
methods to measure the impact of their advertising and
sponsorship campaigns Delivery of complex data sets tallored
for our clients also requires sophisicated tools for data delivery,
analysts and visualisation which our investment in these
technologies helps us to fulft This allows us to capiialise on the
opportunity that we have identified to integrate syndicated data
INto custom research projects

Enhance user expenence

Integrated data, and user expenence in producing that data, are
two parts of the same process That s why one of YouGov's key
differentiators 1s that we treat panel management as part of our
panel-centnc methodology This centres on using online panels
with engaged long-term respondents to bulld up an ever-growing
web of data For example, by adding the data from today's
interview to that from last month’s interview and so on, we can build
a full picture of the complexity of consumers' interactions and can
track when and how these change This 1s a marked shift from the
old world In which people were stopped in the street or contacted
by telephone for a one-off survey which provided a single
snapshot or slice of data and the interviewee then yielded no
further value Our panellists are happy to share thew Ives with us
with many giving YouGov access to their Facebook pages and
Twitter identities and allowing us to track their online actvities

It follows from the centrality of this method that YouGov's success
depends on us keeping panel membbers engaged and responsive
Durning this financial year, we strengthened the management of our
panels by appointing a Group Director of User Expenence who will
ensure consistent, active management of the relationship with our
panellists across the Group This also improves the returns from our
investment m panel recrutment We have alsc continued to develop
innovative ways for our panellists to extend their interactions with
YouGov beyond responding to surveys These include “You Made
the News!" alerts and Cpigram

“You Made the News!" alerts inform respondents to a survey about
articles published covenng the results of that survey This feature
provides panellists with feedback on how the data that they provide
15 being used and satisfies therr interest in the overall results

of surveys that they take This currently only covers publication

of results on YouGov's UK and US websites but will be extended

10 other units and to external media coverage

Opigram, developed n partnership with CoEditor Limited, 1s a new
technology for recording and measunng opinions that our paneiists
choose to offer It 1s becoming an integrat part of YouGov's
panel-facing websites and allows YouGov paneliists proactivefy to
share their gpinion on any subject, whenever they Itke and to build

IMAGE
REMOVED
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up therr own profile through a combination of ratings, opinions,
and agreeing or disagreeing with the opinions of other panellists
1t provides people with a way to record their opirions and
expenences that 1s organised to be useful to them, and to other
people The platform also offers a social network through which
panellists can exchange optnions As well as entertaining our
panellists, Opigram i1s building a valuable database of how
opInions on one area or issue correlate with athtudes on others (for
example, consumer preferences with media usage and changmng
atttudes) and this extends the range of usable data that YouGov
can offer its chents (as always, on an anonymised basis) Opgram
1s the new searchable data-base of the “long tail” of changing
respondent data and 1s therefore tself a data product Itis helping
transform YouGov from a company that uses the Internet to an
actual Internet company

After a successful soft-launch in the UK, Opigram was rolled-out iIn
the USA in July 2012, and the level of engagement across both the
UK and US websites has demonstrably increased Since January
2013, the number of unigue visitors has increased by 76% to our
UK site and by 32% to our US site Reflecting the importance of
this technology, YouGov has increased its effective holding in
CoEdrtor, the company which 1s developing Opigram, to 57%

Boost our public profile

YouGov's reputation for providing accurate and authontative
infarmation 1s enhanced by the strength of our public profile and
this in turn means that our panelhsts know that their opinions count
In the UK, YouGov I1s quoted twice as often as any of our
competitors and we are also iIncreasingly quoted in traditional and
digital media around the world Duning the 2012 US Presidential
Election our regular polling and collaborations with CBS and
Huffington Post generated significant pubhcity for YouGaov

We believe that the demonstrable superior accuracy of the online
methads 1n this election has clearty tilted the debate over US
political poling in favour of online Another innovation dunng the
US Presidential Debates was our live poling in partnership with
Microsoft using the Xbox platform to measure mstantly the
reactions of young adult voters YouGov's media engagement
modet is being applied in other unis too In France, for example,
collaboration with Huffington Post has helped our new operation
to gain rapid media exposure and In Germany, daily poling 18
conducted for a number of media outlets including two natonal
newspapers Die Zeit and Bild

We are also ensunng that our brand’s public profile 1s fully
leveraged among market research buyers in all geographies

We are therefore planning to appoint a global Chief Marketing
Officer to lead the Group's marketing activities and increase the
awareness and understanding of our brand proposition among
all constituencies This role will be based in New York with an iniual
focus on the US market

1

By continuing with our
innovation and investment
we will be able to build on our
already strong position and
deliver the growth strategy

to which we have previously
committed.”

Nnaratinn raviow |

Avarnanca |

Looking ahead

The nature of the market research industry 1s changing The ofd
mode! of seeking the views of a structured sample and then
using statistical technigues to exirapolate a valid answer far the
population is proving expensive and slow We are seeing clear
signs that chients in all types of organisation are increasingly
demanding accurate, real-time information ncluding analysis of
social media commentary of the kind that YouGov has set itself
up to provide through the immediate responses of registered and
documented panelists This allows far more accurate and rapid
Insights to be obtained Even the global research groups which
have large, hustoric investments n tracitional methods are publicly
acknowledging this trend

Einanmal ctatamante I

As YouGov 1s an acknowledged world leader in real-tme research,
we believe we are well placed to benefit from these changes

that are dnven by the growing impact of digital technologies

By continuing with our innovation and investment we will be able to
buld on our already strong position and deliver the growth strategy
to which we have previously committed

Our focus N the coming year will remain on mantaming the growth
from our expanding sutte of data products and services and on
focusing resources In all our existing operations so as 1o explom
further the advantages of our core operating modet We will also
continue to develop opportuniies for geographical expansion

The Board Is confident that YouGov will deliver further growth in
revenue and profits In the current year

A ddihianal infarmatinn
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Operating review

Review of operations
for the year ended 31 July 2013

UK USA
Year to Year 10 Year to Year to
31 July 2013 31July 2012 % 3 Juty 2013 31 Juty 2012 %
£m £m Change £m £m Change
Revenue o 174 157 11% Revenue 208 192 8%
Adjusted Operating Profit 4.4 37 19%  Adjusted Operating Profit 2.3 27 (15%)
Adjusted Operating Profit Adjusted Operating Profit
Margin (%) 26% 24% Margin (%) 1% 14%

Our UK business achieved another successful performance with
operating profit growth of 19% based on revenue growth of 1%
which reflected continued market share gains and on operating
margins iIncreasing from therr already impressive base Inline with
our overall strategy, the UK's revenue from data products and
services grew proportionately faster (20% up) than that from
custom research (7% up) Good progress was also made in our
aim of combining YouGov's propretary data with additional
bespoke surveys In our offenngs to clients

Data producis and services now represent 46% of the total
revenue and its scalability helps 1o make the UK our hughest margin
unit Within this, Brandindex revenue grew by 41% with 20 new
subscnbers, ncluding Barclaycard and Travelodge, signed in the
year brnging the total number of UK Brandindex customers to 50
Revenue from UK Omnibus, which is already the clear leader in s
marketplace, grew by 18% due In part to more clents taking up

(ts International offenngs as well as the segmental Omnibus’s (such
as “Man Shopper” and “Parents and Children™) which are
becoming a valuable extension to the service range SixthSense,
our reparts business, achieved revenue growth of 15% with
particular success in sales 1o the financtal services sector
including clients such as Santander and Prudential

As anticipated at the interm stage, strong sales n the first half
fed through to above-market annual growth in custom research
revenue These Included a number of significant new contracts,
notably in financial services (Barclays and Blackrock), technology
(Docomo Europe) and media (ITV) as well as renewals from
existing major clients such as Asda, Costa Coffee and News UK
Our specralist Reputation practice also extended s chent base
to include a global bank and a leading professional service firm
Our Political team remains at the forefront of its field and 1in 2013
has entered into a new partnership with The Times in adchition

to aur long-standing relauonship wih The Sunday Times

Although we continued to grow our market share in the US, with 8%
overall revenue growth and data products revenue growing strongly
at 43%, the US adjusted operating profit fell by 15% This was due
to lower than expected revenue In the custom business in the
second half, which was not offset by cost reductions, although
actions now taken to strengthen sales and reduce the overhead
cost base are expected 1o improve profitability

Growth in data products and services revenue was largely due
to Brandindex whose market awareness in the US continues to
develop, supported by active public relations campaigns and
collaboration with leading media buying agencies The new
Brandindex CategoryView which provides in-depth tracking of
consumer attitude and buying habits in an indwvidual sector was
taunched commercially in the US dunng the year, targeted
particularly at the investment sector US Brandindex clients include
Bank of Amenca, Subway and Western Union There was a small
revenue contnbution from the new Omnibus service, launched in
the USA n January 2013, which 1s performing as planned as well
as continued growth in the specialist Hospitalindex product

The custom business continued to win new clients and achieved
revenue growth of 3%, in line with the US research market as a
whole, despite the unexpected reduction in commissions from two
major clients It continued to extend the range of corporate clients
that YouGov serves in the USA (which now include Coca-Cola,
Georgia Pacific, Microsoft, NetJets, Remy Martin and Travelocity)
Poiling work 1n connection with the 2012 Presidential election,
including collaborations with Huffington Post and CBS also helped
to Increase awareness of YouGov's reputation for accuracy as well
as of YouGov generally in the US
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Middle East
Year to Year to
Mgy 2013 31 July 2012 %
£m £m Change
Revenue ~ . 13 60 22%
Adjusted Operating Profit 15 13 18%
Adjusted Operating Profit
Margin {%) 21% 22%

banks Technology and media 1s also growing with clients such as
Deutsche Tetekom and Vodafone Brandindex has continued to
gain new subscnbers and the Omnibus service has moved onto
a full datly basis The goal remains lo Increase margins further

as we expand the penetration of YouGov core services in the
German market

Our Middle East business has continued to exploit our region-wide
reputation for accuracy and qualty as well as our local relationships
50 as to delver revenue growth of 22%, which was higher than

our onginal expectations for the year This enabled it to increase
adjusted operating profit by 18% to £1 5m, also better than
planned, with operating margins remaining broadly stable

In addition to winrung business in Dubal and Saud) Arabia from
clients such as Emirates Aurines, Pepsico, Saudi Telecom and
vanous UAE public bodies, we have also won major contracts

in Kurdistan for commercial market research and public opinion
poling which led to the establishment of a branch office in

this rapidly expanding ecanomy Our panel, which now covers

21 countnes in the Middle East and North Afnca, continues to

be regarded as the regional leader 1n terms of quality and has
supported growth of our online data services (including
Brandindex and Omnibus) which grew revenue by 26% in the
year The partnership with Al-Aan TV (0 provide surveys for theur
pan-regional Arab language channels contnues to help promote
our brand regionally The economic opportunities in the Middle East
region, Including its young population profile, continue to atiract
interest and iInvestment from international and regional businesses
despite the polibcal instabitites YouGov's regional footpnint and
panel make us well postioned to service the resulting research
requirements and deliver further growth

Germany
Year to Year to
31 July 2013 3% Juy 2012 %
£m £m Change
Revenue i q a4 94 _
Adjusted Operating Profit 09 08 36%
Ad)usted Operating Profit
Margin (%) 9% 7%

Our clear prionty in Germany has been to increase profitability
and align the business more closely with YouGov's core operating
mode! We are pleased to be able to report a continued
performance improvement in 2012/13 with 36% operating profit
growth and a 9% margin being achieved This achievermnent was
due n part to the cost savings implemented in the prior year and
also to a 2% point Increase 1n gross margins this year to 80%
resulting from the focus on winning higher margin business This
selective approach contributed to the overall revenue remaining
static compared to the previous year The financial services
remained the largest sector In the business with clients including
Commerzbank and many of Germany’s savings and regional

Nordic
Year to ‘Year (o
31 July 2013 31 Juy 2012 %
£m £m Change
Revenue i 8.5 88 4%
Adjusted Operating Profit 0.3 08 (55)%
Adjusted Operating Profit
Margin (%) 4% 9%

As reported at the intenm stage, our Nordic business expenenced
a challenging year, due largely to poor trading 1n Sweden which led
to overall revenue falling by 4% although the Danish office which
accounts for nearly 50% of the business grew revenue by 1% In
January 2013, a turnaround programme was inshtuted under the
leadership of an intenm CEQ with the aim of restoring growth and
improving margins by shifting the business mocdiel closer to that of
the UK with a higher proportion of Omnibus and data products
business Staff numbers have been reduced resulting in cost
savings of £0 5m on an annual basis As a result there was a
return to profitability In the second half of the year Major clients

in the year iIncluded OMD, Carlsberg and Steen & Strom

{the retail group)

France

Our French business which 1s 1n its second year of operation,
doubled its revenue as planned to £0 3m It is delvenng YouGov's
core products and services (Brandindex and Omnibus) into the
French market as welt as providing French data for international
survey projects lts panel has now grown to 83,000 members
French Brandindex sales have been made to exasting international
chents as well as locally to companies such as KFC, Danone Baby
Nutriion and Sarenza The unitis on course for further strong
growth In the coming year

e Pl

Stephan Shakespeare
Chief Executive Officer

14 Qctober 2013
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Operating review

Chief Financial Officer's report
for the year ended 31 July 2013

IMAGE
REMOVED

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED
GRAPH
REMOVED

Income statement review

Group revenue for the year to 31 July 2013 of £62 6m was 8%
higher than the prior year The highest growth was in the Middle
East at 22%, while the UK grew at 11% and the US 8% Revenue In
Germany was n ine with the previous financial year and Nordic
declined by 4%

The Group’s gross profil (after deducting costs of panel incentives
and external data collection) increased by £2 4m to £47 1m
although the gross margin fell by 2 percentage points to 75% from
77%, due equally to higher panel incentives and external data
collection costs

Cperating expenses (excluding amortisation and exceptional
tems) of £41 1m were £1 9m higher than last year, a total increase
of 5% However, the operating expense ratio fell to 66% compared
to 67% In the pnor year reflecting pnor year cost savings and
continued focus on controling staff and other costs

The average number of staff (full-ime equivalents) employed
dunng the year increased by 20 to 502 from 482 in the previous
year to support business growth Average revenue per head
increased to £125,000 from £121,000 and staff cost as a
percentage of revenue was unchanged at 50%

Adjusted Group operating profit Increased by 7% to £6 Om
compared to £5 6m in the previous year Net finance income was

£0 1m compared to a cost of £0 2m last year, pnmanly due to foreign
exchange gains, resuling in adjusted profit before taxation nsing by
13% to £6 8m Adjusted earnings per share for the year rose by
07pto 5 6p. The reported profit before taxation (after charging
amortisation and exceptional tems of £4 5m) rose £1 1m to £1 5m

Amortisation of intangible assets and impairment

Amortisation charges for intangible assets of £3 3m were £1 1m
lower than the previous year, largely due to lower costs relating to
intangible assets acquired through business combinations which
fell to £0 8m (2012 £2 0m) £1 2m of the remaining charge related
to separately acquired assets, as In the prior year and £1 3m (2012
£1 2m) to those created through the Group's own internal
development activities

Exceptional items

Exceptional costs of £12m (2012 £0 5m) were incurred in the year
These included £0 6m of restructunng costs, pnmanly in relation to
the Nordic business, £0 3m of acquisibon related expenditure,

£0 2m of employment termination costs incurred in the US and

£0 1m in relation to the closure of the panel in Chile previously
operated through a local partner

Analysis of operating profit and earmings per share

M Juty 2013 31 July 2012
£000 £000

Group operating profit before amortsation of

Intangibles, iImparment and exceptional costs 5,982 5,585
Share-based payments 767 641

Imputed interest 71 150
Net finance income/(cost) 18 (240)
Share of post-tax loss In associates (122) (83)
Adjusted profit before tax 6,816 6,053
Adjusted profit after tax 5,312 4,663
Adjusted earnings per share' (pence} 5.6 49

1 Adusted earnings per shara is calculated based on the post-tax result denved from the
adjusted proht betore tax

Cash flow

The Group generated £6 9m in cash from operations (before
paying interest and tax) (2012 £4 9m), cash conversion was good
at 116% of adjusted operating profit (2012 88%), and included a
£0 7m inflow due to lower working capital Expenditure on investing
and financing actvities was £6 5m (2012 £59m), £4 Om of this
(2012 £33m) related to capital expenditure on tangible and
intangible assets and £2 0m {2012 £2 6m) to acquisiions including
deferred consideration
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Taxation

The Group had a tax credit of £0 6m (2012 £0 1m charge) on a
reported basis, the current tax charge of £0 5m (2012 £0 4m)
being offset by a deferred tax credit of £1 1m (2012 £03m)

On an adjusted basis, the tax charge was £1 5m (2012 £1 4m)
which represents an implied tax rate of 22% on the adjusted profit
before tax, one percentage point lower than the prior year

Balance sheet

Total shareholders’ funds increased to £61 1m from £55 9m at

31 July 2012 and total net assets increased to £61 1m compared
to £56 Om at 31 July 2012 Net cash balances fell by £0 5m to

£6 7m from £7 2m as at 31 July 2012, due largely to the cash
expenditure on deferred consideration tn respect of the US
acquisitions made in prior years Net current assets increased to
£11 0m from £10 3m Debtor days increased to 68 days from 63
days Current labilites increased by £2 8m to £19 7m from

£16 9m Creditor days decreased to 31 days from 35 days in 2012

Panel development

Dunng the year we have amended the definition that we use to
measure pane! size to bring 1tinto hne with the ISO 26362 definition
of size which counts only active participants As a result the
number of panelists reported at 31 July 2012 has been restated
from 3 3m to 2 9m As at 31 July 2013, the Group’s online panels
compnsed a total of 2 8m panellists. a decrease of 3% from the
restated total of 2 9m as at 31 July 2012 The panel sizes by

region were

Panel size Panel sze
- SN b
UK 442100 437,200
Middle East 326,400 346,800
Germany 140,500 194,300
Nordic 101,700 101,600
USA 1,704,900 1,717,000
France 83,300 81,800
Total 2,798,800 2,878,800

Restated

Corporate development activities

A final payment of $1 8m (£1 1m) was made dunng the year in
respect of the acquisition of Harnson Group as antiipated and
previously provided for in the accounts, which brings the total
consideration to $14 4m (£8 9m)

A payment of $0 8m (£0 5m) was made in respect of the
acquisition of Cefinitive Insights bringing the total consideration
1o date to $2 Om (E1 2m) Additional payments totalling $0 8m
(£0 6m) will be payable in two instalments in 2014 and 2015

A final payment of $0 6m (£0 4m) was also made in respect of the
acquisiion of Clear Honzons LLC brnnging the total consideration
paid to $2 3m (£1 Sm}

On 6 September 2013, after the end of the financial year, a 40%
shareholding was acquired in Doughty Medhia 2 Limited ("DMZ2")
which has a 69% shareholding in CoEditor Limited, the company

which has developed the Opigram service and in which YouGov
already owned a 29 6% shareholding Following this purchase,
YouGov now effectively controls 57% of CoEditor Limited

The shareholding was purchased from the directlor of Co-Editor
responsible for the Opigram development who has become an
employee of YouGov following the transaction

The maximum purchase pnee for the shareholding acquired in
DM2 15 £497,000 of which £37,000 was paid in cash on
completion The remamning balance will be payable in YouGov
shares in February 2015 with the majonty {(up to £348,000) being
contingent on the achievement of certain performance cntena
relating to the delivery of expected benefits ansing from the
incorporation of the Opigram service within YouGov's online
presence The number of YouGov shares to be 1ssued In February
2015 will be calculated by reference to therr average pnce over the
five dealing days pnor to 6 September 2013

The remaining 60% shareholding in DM2 s held by Stephan
Shakespeare (CEQ of YouGov plc) and his wife, Rosamund
Shakespeare The Directors of YouGov (other than Stephan
Shakespeare who has been excluded from these discussions due
to hus conflict) believe that it 1s in YouGov's best interests to take full
contral of the Opigram technology They have therefore approved
an offer to purchase the 60% shareholding in DM2 held by
Stephan and Rosamund Shakespeare, for a maximum pnce of
£744,000 This 1s on an eguivalent valuatien and terms to those
agreed for the purchase of the 40% shareholding set out above,
except that there will be no cash element and therefore the entire
consideration will be payable in February 2015 in YouGov shares,
with up to £522,000 of this being contingent upon the achievement
of the performance critena descnbed above The imphed valuation
of CoEditor 1s also equivalent to that upon which YouGov
previously acquired s 28% shareholding The Directors (cther
than Stephan Shakespeare) consider these terms to be far and
reasonable and in the best interests of the Company As this
transaction would be a substantial property transaction as defined
by 5190 of the Companies Act 20086, the Board proposes at the
forthcorming AGM to seek approval for it from the shareholders of
the Company as required by the Act As a result of the transaction,
YouGov will effectively control 98% of CoEditor Limited

Proposed dividend

The Board Is recommending the payment of a final divdend of

0 6p per share for the year ended 31 July 2013 If shareholders
approve this payment at the AGM, it will be paid on 16 December
2013 to all shareholders who were on the Register of Members at
close of business on 6 December 2013

Alan N an
Chief Financial Officer

14 QOctober 2013
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Govemance

Board of Directors

Roger Parry Non-Executive Chawman

Experience
Roger 15 Chasrman of YouGov ple, MSQ Partners Ltd and Mobile Streams
Pic He s a Visiting Fellow of Oxford University Roger was previously a
consultant with McKinsey & Co, CEQ of More Group ple, Charrman and
IMAGE CEO of Clear Channel International, Chairman of Johnsten Press plc,
REMOVED Chairman of Future plc and Chairman of Shakespeare’s Globe Trust
Roger was educated at the universites of Oxford (M Lit Economics) and
Bnstol (BSc Geology) He is the author of four books People Businesses,
Enterprise, Making Cites Work, and The Ascent of Media

Stephan Shakespeare Chief Executve Officer
Expenence
Stephan co-founded YouGov In 2000 (in coltaboration with Nadhim Zahawi)
Ore of the ploneers of internet research, Stephan has been the dnving
force behind YouGov's innovation-ted strategy He also founded

IMAGE PoliicsHome com and ConservativeHome com He was charr of the Data
REMOVED Strategy Board for the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills
2012-2013 and led the Shakespeare Review of Public Sector Information
He 1s currently a member of the Government's Public Sector Transparency
Board, a trustee of the Natonal Portrait Gallery and Chairman of Flooved
Ltd Stephan has an MA in English Language and Literature from Oxford
University

Alan Newman Chief Financial Officer

Expenence
Alan has been YouGov's Group Chigf Financial Officer since 2008 Pnor o
joining YouGaov, Alan was a Partner with Ernst & Young LLP and KPMG LLP
where he led the TMT sector financial management consulting practice
IMAGE Alan's previous corporate management roles include Internatonal Finance
REMOVED Director of Longman and Group Development Manager of MAI plc (now
United Business Medta) He is a Trustee of the Freud Museum London
and a Director of the Cioted Companies Allance Alan is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants and has an MA In Modern Languages
(French and Spanish) from Cambndge Umversity

Doug Rivers Chief Innovations Officer

Expenence

Doug was CEO of YouGov's Amencan business from 2007 to 2011,
following YouGav's acquisition of Polimetnx which Doug founded in 2004

IMAGE Prior to this he was CEQ of Knowledge Networks. He has also been a
Professor of Politcal Science at Stanford University in Califorria since 1989,
REMOVED and 1 a Senior Fellow at the Hoover Institution Doug holds a PhD from

Harvard University and a BA from Columbia University
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IMAGE
REMOVED

Sir Peter Bazalgette Non-Executve Director
Committees
Charr of Remunerahon Committee, member of the Audit Committee

Expenence

Sir Peter 1s Chair of Arts Council England and former Charr of English
National Opera He has raised funds for arts and media organisations,
notably as Chair of The Crossness Engines Trust and as Deputy Chair

of The Natonal Film and Television School He has a number of media
interests, serving on the Boards of ITV and MirnAd and the Advisory Board
of BBH He is actve In the telewision industry and is the president of The
Royal Television Society, served as the Chief Creative Officer of Endemoal,
served on the Board of Channel 4 and devised several internationally
successful television formats. He was also a Non-Executive Directer of
DCMS Peter writes a regular food column far the Financial Times

IMAGE
REMOQVED

Nick Jones Non-Executive Director

Commuttees
Chair of Audit Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee

Expenence

Nick is currently Chief Financial Officer of Achilles Group, the global
provider of professional procurement services Pror to this, he was Global
Head of Finance for Reuters plc where he also led the integration of
Thomson and Reuters Nick has held senior financial roles in technology
and media businesses in the UK, the US and Europe including Virgin
Media, Philips Electronics and RR Donnelley He 1s a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and holds a BA (Hons)
in Accounting and Finance

IMAGE
REMOVED

Ben Elliot Non-Executive Director

Experience

Ben s the co-founder of Quintessentrally, the luxury Iifestyle group and
24-hour global concierge service, which he started in London in December
2000 The Quintessentally Group operates in 60 cties globally and has

32 sister businesses 1n the luxury Iifestyle market Ben 1s the charman of the
Quintessenbatly Foundaton Since it was established in 2008, it has raised
over 2 5 milion pounds for chanty He was alse proudly involved in

the fundraising for Her Majesty the Queen's Diamond Jubilee in 2012

Ben 1s Executive Producer of the award-winning feature documentary

Fire in Babylon He graduated from the University of Bnstol with a degree

in Poliics
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Governance

Corporate Governance Report
for the year encled 31 July 2013

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

YouGov is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 as itis listed on the AIM Index but the Board
considers that the Group should work towards compliance with it to the exient appropnate for a business of our size and complexity
Full compliance has not yet been achieved and the Board and Audit commiitee monitor the Company’s compliance on a regular basis
A copy of the Code is publicly avallable at wwwirc org uk

The Board

At 31 July 2013, the Board consisted of three Executive Directors and four Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman and
the semor Non-Executive Director The names of the Directors and thelr respective responsibilities are shown on pages 24 and 25

The Board operates both formatly, through Board and committee meetings, and informaity, through regular contact amongst Directors
High level decisions on such matiers as strategy. financial performance and reporing, dividends, nsk managernent, major capital
expenditure, acquisitons and disposals are reserved for the Board or Board committees For its regular formal meetings, the Board
receves appropnate information in advance from management

The Directors can obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s own expense in the performance of their duties as Directors

The Board formally approves the appointment of all new Directors All Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election at the
first Annual General Meeting following their appontment and subsequent to this at the Annual General Meeting on a rotational basts,
which ensures that each Director 1s submitted for re-election approximately every three years Proposals to re-elect Directors have been
set out In the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Board committees

Remuneration committee — The Remuneration committee was established at the tme of flotation The composition of the Remuneration
commitiee s shown below and the statement of the remuneration policy developed by the committee and detaills of each Director’s
remuneration are given within the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages 2910 31

Audit committee - The composition of the Audit committee 1s shown below The Audit committee operates under terms of reference

agreed by the whole Board and meets with the external auditors to consider the Company's financial reporting in advance of its
publication

Board and committee attendance
The following table sets out the attendance of Directors at Board and committee meetings during 2012113

Remuneration Audit Committes

Ovecior O™ Mmmamz Moo 2
Stephan Shakespeare 8 - -

Alan Newman 8 - 2 (in attendance)
Doug Rivers 8 - -

Roger Parry 8 - -

Sir Peter Bazalgetie 8 2 2

Nick Jones 8 2 2

Ben Elltot 8 — -

Shareholder communications

The Board's assessment of the Company's posttion and prospects are set out i the Chairman's Statement on pages 14 and 15 and
the Chief Financial Officer's Report on pages 22 and 23

The Executve Directors meet regularty with institutional shareholders to discuss the Company’s performance and future prospects
At these meetings the views of institutional shareholders are canvassed and subsequently reporied back lo the Board The Annual
General Meeting 1s used as a forum for communication with private shareholders
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Audit committee
The Audit commuttee compnses the two Non-Executive Directors, Nick Jones (its Charman) and Peter Bazalgette Nick Jones has recent
and relevant financial expenence

The Audit committee reports to the Board on any matters in respect of which it considers that acton or improvement 1s needed, and
makes recommendations as to the steps to be taken In particular the committee 15 responsible for

» ensuning that the financial perfermance of the Group 1s properly monitored and reported,

« monitonng the formal announcements relating to financial performance,

- meeting the external auditors and agreeing audit strategy.

-« reviewing reports from the auditors and management relating to accounts and internal control systems, and

« makmng recommendations to the Board In respect of external auditor appointment and remuneraton

The effectiveness of the internal control systems 1s under constant review and a formal assessment of internal controls has been
conducted The Audit committee will monitor the Implementation of a senes of detalled steps to improve the control environment
Although there was no formal internal audit during the year, the accounting functions were subject to penodic internal review As the
business continues to grow we keep the Group’s need for an internal audit function under constant review

Key controls and procedures
The Board maintains full control and direction over appropnate strategic, financial, organisational and compliance 1ssues, and has put
in place an organisational structure with defined ines of responsibility and delegation of authority

The annual budget and forecasts are reviewed by the Board pnor to approval being given This includes the identfication and
assessment of the business nsks inherent in the Group and the medha sector as a whole, along with associated financial nsks

The system of internal control 1s designed to manage rather than eiminate the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectves in additon to
providing reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misslatement or loss These include controls in relation to the financial
reporting process and the preparation of consolidated accounts These procedures have been in place dunng the financial year up to

the date of approval of the annual report This process s regularly reviewed by the Board and 1s in accordance with the Turniaull
guidance The key procedures include,

« detaled budgeting programme with an annual budget approved by the Board,

« regular review by the Board of actual results compared with budget and forecasts,

« regular reviews by the Board of year end forecasts,

+ establishment of procedures for acquistions, capital expenditure and expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of business,
- detaled budgeting and montonng of costs incurred on the development of new products,

- reporting to, and review by, the Beard of changes in legislation and practices within the sector and accounting and legal
developments pertinent to the Company,

« appointing expenenced and sutably qualified staff to take responsibility for key business functions to ensure maintenance of high
standards of performance, and

- appraisal and approval of proposed acquisitions by the Board

Auditor independence

The Audit committee also undertakes a formal assessment of the auditors’ Independence each year which includes

- confirmation of the auditors' objectvity and independence in the provision of non-audit services to the Company by the use
of separate teams to provide such services where appropnate,

« discussion with the auditors of a wniten report detailing refationships with the Company and any other parties that could affect
independence or the perception of independence,

«+ areview of the auditors' own procedures for ensuring independence of the audit firm and partners and staff Involved In the audh,
including the regular rotation of the audit partner, and

- obtaining wntten confirmation from the auditors that, in therr professional judgement, they are independent

Any analysis of the fees payable to the external audt firm in respect of both audit and non-audit services dunng the year 1s set out In
Note 2 to the financial statements
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Governance

Corporate Governance Report continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Risk management

The Board reviews nsks facing the business on a regular basis The following paragraphs descnbe the principal nsks and uncertaintes
identified

Early stage of development - Although the Company has grown substantially since i was formed ten years ago, It remans a relatively
small company In an early stage of development The Company faces competiion from both large established international companies
as well as small local businesses operating in the same sector

Cumrency fluctuations — The Group Is exposed to currency nsk as the Group operates in multiple geographic regions  This manifests
itself 1n cifferent forms We seek to reduce this nsk by invoicing in local currency thus reducing exposure in normal trading The Group 18
exposed to currency translation nsk in the consolidaton of accounting records The main reportng currencies of Group subsidianes are
Sterling, US Dollar, Euro, Danish Kroner and Arab Emirate Dirham

Projected growth — The Company’s plans incorparate continued growth in the coming years This growth will be in part dependent on
the marketing and research budgets of target clients over which YouGov has littie control This is mitigated through effective key chent
relationship management and continually reviewing order pipelines and sales targets

Competition ~ YouGov has developed an internet based research strategy which other farge and established research orgarsations are
also beginning fo adopt Some of these more established research organisations have well developed brands and substantial resources
and may be able to use these to compete very effectively in developing online panels and competing software This 1s achieved by the
use of patents and trademarks where appropnate and also by managing our Technology nsk as detailed below

Staff — The success of YouGov will be influenced by the recruitment and retention of high callbre staff Senior staff that manage key client
relationships and those with software expertise are particularty important to the continuing development and smooth running of the
Company To mitigate this nsk, YouGov has built account and project management teams for key clients and larger research projects

In this way the client relationships and project refated knowledge are shared among a numboer of individuals rather than concentrated
with ane person We also Incentivise key persannel through participation in long-term incentive programmes such as the LTIP share
option scheme

Internationalisation — YouGov now has wide geographical spread Monitonng and reporting these businesses performance relles upon
the operation of key controls There is a nsk that these controls may not operate effectively In each junsdiction

Acquisttions — The Directors plan to expand and develop the business through a strategy of targeted acquisitions The nisk exists that
integration of any acquired business will be unsuccessful or that key employees or clients of the acquired business will be lost Directors
will attempt to mitigate this nsk by careful due diigence and communication with the clients of target companies The Drectors will also
seek to communicate YouGov's strateqy to staff and ensure that levels of remuneration and benefits are appropnate 1o retain key
employees

Technology - A strong software platform 1s essential for carrying out online research This software must be reviewed and updated on

a regular basis to ensure that it does not become superseded by newer technologies in other companies YouGov has sought to remain
competitive In this area by recruiting an expenenced team of software specialists with responsibility for developing the propnetary
software systems Employees in this area must provide three months’ notice on departure and YouGov has developed a succession
planning docurnent with sufficient detail on the structure of propretary software applications and the IT infrastructure to assist in an
orderly transition penod i the event of staff leaving A disaster recovery plan is in place and 1s reviewed by the Audit committee annually
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Governance

Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 July 2013

The Remuneration committee compnsed at 31 July 2013 two Non-Executive Directors, Peter Bazalgette and Nick Jones

Remuneration Report

A resolution will be put to the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 11 December 2013, inviting them to consider
and approve this report The remuneration report 1s unaudited, except where stated

Compliance

The constitution and eperation of the Commuttee 1s N compliance with the pnnciples and best practice provisions as set out inthe UK

Corporate Governance Code as if it were followed and full consideration was given to these in determining the remuneration packages
for the executive Directors for 2012/13

This 1S not a remuneration report as defined by Company law

Policy on remuneration of Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance of Executive Directors and sets the scale and structure of their remuneration and
the basis of therr service agreements with due regard to the interests of shareholders [n determiming that remuneration the Remuneration
Committee seeks to offer a competitive remuneration structure to maintain the tugh calibre of its executive board The Commitee beleves

that maintaining the Company's business growth and profit record requires an overall compensation policy with a strong perfermance-
related element

The main components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration are

1. Basic salary

Basic salary for each Director is determined by the Remuneration Committee taking into account the performance of the Indmidual and
external market data The Commitiee’s policy IS to review salanes annually

2. Bonus scheme

The Remuneratich Committee has determined that the bonus scheme for the Executive Directors should be based on the achievement of
medium-term goals that are linked to the Group’s stated strategy and its financial performance over the three years ended 31 July 2015
as well as to each Director's indvidual role The Rermuneration Committee will make annual bonus awards for 2012113 and 2013/14

dependent upon the Directors’ performance relative to the targets and a final award for the year ended 2014/15 relating to the cumulative
three-year performance

3 Share options

The Company believes that share ownership by non-business owner Executive Directors strengthens the link between their personal
interests and those of the shareholders in respect of shareholder value

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")

The Long Term Incentive Plan was established i 2009 in which Executive Directors and senior managers of the Company and its
subsidianes are eligible to participate

Under the rules of the LTIP participants are conditionally awarded nil cost optians to acquire shares Awards are usually made annually
The number of such shares will normally be calculated by reference to a percentage of the participant's salary and the Company's
closing share pnce on the date of the Preliminary Announcement of the Group’s annual results The shares subject to the LTIP awards
will be released to the recipients at the end of a holding period, normatly three years, subject to therr continued employment (with
exceptions in certan circumstances) The performance cnteria attached to these awards are earnings per share growth and total
shareholder return versus companies in the AIM Media index If adjusted earnings per share growth exceeds the Retall pnce Index
(“RPI") by 5% or mare the options wall vest in full, if it exceeds RPI by 3%, 50% of the opttons wall vest subject to, in each instance, total
shareholder return exceeding the average of the AIM Media Index

No LTIP shares were awarded In the year ended 31 July 2013 Approximately 2 4 million LTIP shares were awarded conditionally in the

year ended 31 July 2012 to participants in the Plan These include conditiohal awards to the Executive Directors of the Company as set
out below

Deferred Stock Scheme

The Deferred Stock Scheme was established n December 2010 with the aim of encouraging the retention of key employees including
Executive Directars and senior managers of the Comparny A participant rust remain employed for a fixed penod determined by the
Remuneration Committee at the date of grant, before the shares can be issued to them This penod will usually be three years and the
Committee may at its ciscretion vary these terms or impaose other conditions

Awards which vest under this scheme will pnmanly be satisfied by the allocation of shares already nheld by the Company's Employee
Benefit Trust No deferred share awards were made In the two years ended 31 July 2013 and 31 July 2012
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Governance

Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Directors’ service contracts
The table below summanses key detalls in respect of each Director's contract

Executive Directors. Confract date Notice period
Stephan Shakespeare 18 April 2005 12 months
Alan Newman 5 June 2009 6 months
Doug Rivers 7 August 2007 S0 days
Non-Exacutive Directors g&m Nonce perlod
Roger Parry 6 February 2007 30 days
Sir Peter Bazalgette 2 March 2005 30 days
Nick Jones 2 June 2009 30 days
Ben Eliot 2 August 2010 30 days

Save as set out above, there are no existing or proposed service contracts between any of the Directors serving at 31 July 2013 and the
Company or any member of the Company

The total aggregate remuneration (including benefits-in-kind and pension contributions) paid to the Direciors by all members of the
Group for the year ended 31 July 2013 amounted to £346,000 (2012 £817,000)

No Director has or has had any interest in any transaction which 1s or was unusual in its nature or conditions or which 1s or was significant
In relation to the business of the Company and which was effected by the Company either (1) dunng the current or immediately
preceding financ:al year, or (1) dunng any earlier financial year and which remains in any aspect outstanding or unperformed

External appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to serve on other boards, at present they recesve no remuneration in respect of external non-executive
appointments

Policy on remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors 1s set by the Board as a whole The Board of Directors believes that ownership of the
Company's shares by Non-Executive Directors helps to align their Interests with those of the Company's shareholders During the year,
the Company’s policy was amended so that a proportion of each Non-Executive Director’'s annual fee will be paid in the form of ordinary
shares In lieu of cash except if the Non-Executive Director has an existing substantial shareholding

Directors’ Remuneration (audited)
Directors’ remuneration in aggregate for the year ended 31 July 2013 was as follows

Executives

Stephan Shakespeare 218,263 54,832 1,473 274,568 234,213
Alan Newman 181,220 45,526 - 226,746 193,025
Doug Rivers 209,316 52,329 - 261,645 224,931
Non-Executives Directors

Roger Parry 89,000 - - 89,000 80,000
Sir Peter Bazalgette 32,917 - - 32,917 30,000
Nick Jones 32,917 - - 32,917 30,000
Ben Elliot 27,917 - - 27,917 25,000
Total 791,550 152,687 1,473 945,710 817,169

The benefit-in-kind received consists of prvate heallh insurance in the year ended 31 July 2012, the remuneration paid to Stephan
Shakespeare, Alan Newman and Doug Rivers included bonus payments of £21,294, £17,680 and £20.475 respectvely Doug Rivers also
participates In a US defined contnbution pension arrangement Dunng the year, the Group contnbuted £3,993 (2012 £4,376)
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Directors’ share options (audited)

The following unexercised nil cost options over shares were held by Directors under the LTIP

Date of grant Earliest exercise date Expiry data 31%%? Exercised in year 31N.;‘unl;b;o1l;
Stephan Shakespeare
29 July 2010 15 October 2012 28 July 2020 368,060 - 388,060
21 July 2011 14 Qctober 2013 20 July 2021 426,563 - 426,563
30 July 2012 13 October 2014 29 July 2022 373,579 - 373,579
1,188,202 - 1,188,202
Alan Newman
29 July 2010 15 Qctober 2012 28 July 2020 288,657 (288,557) -
21 July 2011 14 October 2013 20 July 2021 354,167 - 354,167
30 July 2012 13 October 2014 29 July 2022 310,175 - 310,175
952,889 (288,557) 664,342
Doug Rivers
29 July 2010 15 October 2012 28 July 2020 94 584 (94,584) -
21 Juty 2011 14 October 2013 20 July 2021 97,050 - 97,050
30 Juty 2012 13 October 2014 29 Juty 2022 363,757 - 363,757
555,391 (94,584) 460,807

During the year ended 31 July 2013, Alan Newman exercised 288,557 options which vested under the LTIP (when the market price was
70p) and Doug Rivers exercised 94,584 LTIP options when the market pnce was 74p No options were exercised dunng the year ended

31 July 2012

Deferred Stock Scheme (audited)

The following deferred shares were held by Directors under the Deferred Stock Scheme

i ool

at 31 July 201% vesting
Stephan Shakespeare 162,500 December 2013
Alan Newman 162,500 December 2013
Doug Rivers 375,000 December 2013

Ouornow
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 July 2013

The Directors present their report and the audted consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2013

Principal activities

YouGov carnes out online research using propristary software to produce accurate market research, politcal and media opimion polling
and stakeholder consuttation The use of internet-based research enables YouGov to produce accurate research using larger sample
sizes while keeping costs lower than traditional research companies that use telephone and face-to-face interview technigues

Business review
The business review is discussed on pages 16 to 23

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal nsks and uncertainties are discussed In the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 28

Financial summary
The financial summary 1s discussed on pages 22 and 23 of the Chief Financial Officer's Report

Dividends

A maiden final dividend 1n respect to the year ended 31 July 2012 of 0 5p per share amounting to £479,000 was paid on 17 December
2012 A dwidend in respect of the year ended 31 July 2013 of Q 6p per share, amounting to a total dividend of £677,000 1s to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 11 December 2013

Future developments
Future developments are discussed in more detail In the Chref Executive's review on pages 16 to 21

Events after the reporting date

On 6 September 2013, YouGov plc purchased a 40% shareholding in Doughty Media 2, a company 60% owned by Stephan
Shakespeare, an Executive Director of YouGov plc, for a purchase pnce of £497,000 £37,000 of this was paid in cash on completion,
the remaining balance will be payable in YouGov shares in February 2015, contingent on the achuevernent of certan performance cnitera

Doughty Media 2 has a 69% sharehalding in CoEditor Limited and following this purchase, YouGov now effectively controls 57% of
CoEditor Limited

Further details of this purchase are disciosed in Note 27 on page 71

Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and at any pointup to the date of signing this report were
Roger Parry (Chairman)

Stephan Shakespeare

Alan Newman

Doug Rivers

Sir Peter Bazalgette

Nick Jones

Ben Elliot
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Directors’ interests in shares
The Interests of the Directors 1n the shares of the Company 31 July 2013 and 31 July 2012 were as follows
31 July 2013 31 July 2012
Number of Number of res
Stephan Shakespeare' 9,069,110 9,439,110 —
Alan Newman 100,557 25,000 H
Doug Rivers 1,572,617 1972617  §
Roger Parry 52,000 52000 £
Sir Peter Bazalgette 263,976 263,976 §
Nick Jones 7,092 _ C
Ben Eliot 7,092 -
1 Includes five ordinary shares held by Stephan s wife Rosamund Shakespeare
There have been no changes to Directors' interests in shares since the year end
The Directors’ Interests in share options are detalled 1n the Remuneration Report on page 31 g
No Director had eitrier, duning or at the end of the year, a matenal interest in any contract which was sigrificant in relation to the E
Group's business §
. C
. ¢
Employee involvement and communication H
The Company has continued its practice of keeping employees informed of matters affecting them as employees and the financial and
economic factors affecting the performance of the Company
Applicatons for employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration for all vacancies in accordance with their partcular
aptitudes and abilites In the event of employees becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to retran them in order that their employment
with the Company may continue —
It is the policy of the Company that training, career development and promotion opportunities should be available to all employees ‘E
Employees are encouraged to own shares in the Company, and many employees are shargholders and/or hold options under the _ch
Company’s share option schemes including the LTIP scheme Information about the Company’s affars 1s communicated to employees 7‘:
through regular management meetings, our newsletter, intranet and social events ]
- :
Policy on supplier payments E

The Company aims to pay all its suppliers within a reasonable penod of their Invoices being receved and approved, provided that the
supplier has performed in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions At 31 July 2013, the number of days credit taken for
purchases by the Group was 31 days (2012 35 days) The number of days credit taken for purchases by the Company was 36 days

(2012 41 days)
Treasury Shares

The total number of shares in treasury at 31 July 2013 was 954,000 (0 98% of the 1ssued share capial) {2012 2,000,000) The purpose
of treasury shares 1s to satisfy future share and/or option awards

Adrditinanal infrrmatinn l
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Directors’ Report continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Substantial shareholders

At 31 July 2013 the following had notified the Company of disclosable interests in 3% or more of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares

Name Shareholding %
BlackRock 14,454,832 14 87%
Balshore Investments 10,029,100 10 32%
Kabouter Management 9,777,567 10 06%
Stephan Shakespeare! 9,069,110 933%
T Rowe Price Global Investments 8,871,720 913%
J O Hambro Capital Management 7,030,000 723%
Baille Gifford 4,905,411 505%
Standard Life Investments 4,404,862 453%
Herald Investment Management 2,950,000 303%

1 Includes 5 ordinary shares held by Stephans wife Rosamund Shakespeare

Key performance indicators

Business performance 1s monitored via four financial key performance indicators, revenue, adjusted operating profit, adjusted operating
profit margin and adjusted earnings per share Performance measured against these key performance INAICators 1s discussed in more
detail on page 1 and in the Chief Financial Officer's Report on pages 22 and 23

Financial risks
The financial risks facing the Group are discussed In more detal in Nate 20 on page 68

Research and development

The Group's research and development actvities centre on the development of bespoke software solutions to support and advance our
online capabilites No research and development was charged to the consolidated income statement in either 2013 or 2012 and £1 8m
(2012 £% 6m) was capitalised and included within intangible fixed assets Capitalised development 1S amortsed to the iIncome statement
over a penod of three years, the amortisation charge In respect of capitalised development was £1 3m (2012 £1 2m)

Social responsibility

The Group recognises the importance of respecting and supporting the communities in which it operates and, thus, improving the
positive mpact of business in society

Ethical behaviour
YouGov expects its employees to exercise hugh ethical and moral standards at all times whilst representing the Company

The environment

The Group recognises that the wise use of resources delivers both environmental and financial benefits As part of our overall approach
to Corporate Responsibility we aim to promote the maintenance of a healthy environment through responsible and sustainable
consumphon and production

Our operations are predominaiely office based, and here we try t0 mimmise our impacts where practicable As partof this pahicy we
« ensure that all waste 1s stored and disposed of responsibly, and recycle where possible,

. ensure that paper used comes from reputable managed forests, and
« comply, where required, with the Packaging (Essential Requirements) Regulations and the Packaging Waste Regulations

Health and safety

The Group takes all reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of ts employees and recognises
its responsibilities for the health and safety of others who may be affected by its actvities

Diversity in the workplace

The Group Is committed to providing a working environment in which its employees are able to realise their potential and to contnbute
to business success Irrespective of gender, marital status, ethnic ongin, nationality, religion, disabilty, sexual cnentation or age




YouGov
Annual Report and Accounts 2013 \ 3 5

Nuoaruiow

Charitable and political contributions

Donations to chantable orgamsations amounted to £73,000 (2012 £51,000) This included an annual subscnption of £70,000
{2012 £45,000) In respect of the “YouGov-Cambndge” programme, an academic partnership established with Cambndge University's
Department of Poliics and International Studies No political donations were made In the year or in the previous year

Insurance of company officers

The Cempany has mantained dunng the financial year, Directors’ and officers’ iability insurance which gives appropnate cover for any
legal action brought aganst its Directors In accordance with Section 236 of the Companies Act 2006, qualifying third-party indemnity
provistons are in place for the Directors and Company Secretary In respect of kabilities incurred as a result of their office, to the extent
permitted by law Tris insurance was In force at the date of signing of the financial statements

inaratinm rouiow |

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-day working caprital requirements through its bank facilites The current economic conditions continue to
create uncertainty particularly over (a) the level of demand for the Group's products, and (b) the availabiity of bank finance for the
foreseeable future The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes In trading performance, show
that the Group should be able to operate without bank finance After making enguines, the Directors have a reasanabie expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng s consolidated financial staiements

Independent auditors

In accordance with section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Company’s Direciors in office as at the date of this report
confirms that

fnvarnanrs

. so far as the Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

- all steps that ought to have been taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

The Group audttors are PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as audtors to the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 11 December 2013 at our offices at 50 Featherstone Street,
Lendon EC1Y 8RT

Finanrial etatamante

Alan Newman
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

On behalf of the Board
14 October 2013
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, and the financial statements tn accordance with applicable taw and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staternents for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean
Unian, and the parent company financial statements \n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicatle law) Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Cempany and of the
profit ar loss of the Group for that penod  [n prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistentty,

. make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent company financial statements respectvely,

« prepare the financial statemenis on the going concern basis unless it is nappropnate to presume that the Company will continue
n business

The Drrectars are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transaciions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any tme the financial posiuon of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsibile for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and intagnty of the Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsaictions

On behalf of the Board

Alan Newman
Chief Financial Officer

14 Qctober 2013




YouGov 37
Annual Repor| and Arcowds 2013

Governance
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of YouGov plc
on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the Group financial statements of YouGov pic for the year ended 31 July 2013 which compnse the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equdy, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Principal Accounting Policies and the related notes.

The fmancial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reportng
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully i the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement sel out on page 36, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibilty 1s to audit and express an opinion
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditng Practices Beard's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body m accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibiity for
any other purpose or lo any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in wrikng

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvoives obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's ercumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financal statements In additon, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent matenal rrusstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the mplications for our report.

Opinion on financial statemeants

In our opmion the Group financial statements

+ gwve a frve and far view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 July 2013 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,
* have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as acopted by the European Union, and

+ hawve been prepared n accordance wath the requrements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on othar matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opruon the information grven in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Group financia! statements are prepared 15
consistent with the Group finzncial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report m respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion
« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, of

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audht.

Other matter
We have reported separatety on the parent company financial statements of YouGov plc for the year ended 31 July 2013

S

David A. Srli
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behatf of PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

14 October 2013
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Financial statements

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Note EE% gg']z)
Revenue 1 62,551 58,145
Cost of sales (15,440) {13,399)
Gross profit 47,111 44,748
Operating expenses” (41,129) (39,1861)
Adjusted operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets
and exceptional items 1 5,982 5,585
Amortisation of intangibles {3,280) (4,350)
Exceptional tems 4 (1,212) (472)
Operating profit 1,490 763
Finance ncome 5 207 g4
Finance costs 5 (89) (334)
Share of post-tax loss In joint ventures and associates (122) (83)
Profit before taxation 1 1,486 440
Tax credit/(charge) 6 623 (79)
Profit after taxation 1 2,109 361
Altnbutable to
— Owners of the parent 2,042 333
— Non-controlling interests 67 28

2,109 361

Eamings per share
Basic eamings per share atinbutable to owners of the parent 8 21p 04p
Diluted earmings per share attnbutable to owners of the parent 8 20p 03p

* Total 2013 gperating expenses ncluding amartsation of intangibles and the items detalled In Note 4 are £45 621m (2012 £43 983m)

All operations are continuing

The notes and accounting policies on pages 43 to 71 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Note om0 S0
Profit for the year 2,109 361
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Currency transiation differences 2,706 (973)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2,706 (973)
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year 4,815 612)
Attributable to
— Owners of the parent 4,743 (635)
— Non-controling interests 72 23
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 4,815 612)

Items 1n the statement above are disclosed net of tax The tax relatng to each component of other comprehensive Income 1s disclosed in

Note 19

The notes and accounting policies on pages 43 to 71 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 July 2013

3 July 3 Juz

Assets Note gog 5120011)
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 38,800 36,239
Other intangible assets 11 9,210 8.544
Property, plant and equipment 12 2,256 2,310
Investments in joint ventures and associates 13 363 485
Deferred tax assets 19 2,847 2,204
Total non-current assets 53,476 49,782
Current assets

Trade and other recevables 14 22,951 19,231
Current tax assetis 834 442
Cash and cash equivalents 15 6,929 7477
Total current assets 30,714 27,150
Total assets 84,190 76,932
Liabilites

Current habilites

Trade and other payables 16 16,235 12,453
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 18 2,737 2,150
Borrowings 15 273 327
Current tax labilites 128 42
Contingent consideration 17 3 1,906
Total current habilites 19,674 16,878
Net current assets 11,040 10,272
Non-current liabilites

Trade and other payables 55 23
Prowisions for other iabihties and charges 18 770 800
Contmgent consideration 17 250 453
Deferred tax habihties 19 2,327 2,774
Total non-current habilities 3,402 4,050
Total iabilites 23,076 20,928
Net assets 61,114 56,004
Equity

Issued share capital 21 195 195
Share premium 21 30,961 30,947
Merger reserve 9,239 9,239
Foreign exchange reserve 10,493 7,792
Retained earmings 10,195 7,776
Total shareholders’ funds 61,083 55,849
Non-conirolling interests in equity 31 55
Total equity 61,114 56,004

The notes and accounting palictes on pages 43 to 71 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The financial statements on pages 38 ta 71 were authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 October 2013 and signed on its

behalf by

Alan Newman

Chief Financial Officer
YouGov plc
Registered no 03607311
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

as at 31 July 2013

Attnbutable to equaty holders of the Company

Share Share Merger .L,“:,‘%“. Retained ol

i O N T foo  "Fowo o
Balance at 1 August 2011 195 30,947 9,239 8,760 6,658 55,799 95 55,894
Changes 1n equity for 2012
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations - - - (368) - (968) (5) {973)
Net loss recognised directly 1n equity - - - {968) - (968) (5) (973)
Profit for the year - - - - 333 333 28 361
Total comprehensive (loss)income
for the year - - - (968) 333 (635) 23 {612)
Dividends paid to non-controling
interests - - - - - - {63) (63)
Share-based payments - - - - 785 785 - 785
Balance at 31 July 2012 195 30,847 9,239 7,792 7,776 55,949 55 56,004
Changes in equity for 2013
Exchange differences on translating
fareagn operatons - - - 2,701 - 2,701 5 2,706
Net income recognised directly
in equity - - - 2,701 - 2,701 5 2,706
Profit for the year - - - - 2,042 2,042 67 2,109
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 2,701 2,042 4,743 72 4815
Issue of shares - 14 - - - 14 - 14
Dividends paid - - - - (479) (479) (96) (575)
Share-based payments - - - - 856 856 - 856
Balance at 31 July 2013 195 30,961 9,239 10,493 10,195 61,083 31 61,114

The notes and accounting policies on pages 43 to 71 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 Juty 2013

Nots Foo 2000
Cash flows from operating activibes
Profit before taxation 1,486 440
Adjustments for
Finance income (207) (94)
Finance costs 89 334
Share of post-tax loss in joint ventures and associates 122 a3
Amortisation of intangibles 1 3,280 4,350
Depreciation 1 539 593
Loss cn disposal of property, plant and equipment and other iIntangible assets 3 135
Other noncash profit tems 866 230
Increase in trade and other recevables (3,113) {1,890)
Increase in trade and other payables 3,381 775
Increase/{Decrease) in provisions 464 (87)
Cash generated from operations 6,910 4,889
interest paid {15) (22)
Income taxes paid (477) (1,295)
Net cash generated from operating activies 6,418 3,572
Cash flow from investing activities
Loan to associate (546) -
Acquisthon of non-controling interest in related party 13 - (100)
Settiement of contingent considerations 17 (2,023) (2,513)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 {411) (624)
Purchase of intangible assets 1 (3,638) (2,703)
Interest receved 34 78
Dvdends receved 41 10
Net cash used in investing actwities (6,543) (5.852)
Cash flows from financing activites
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 14 1
Proceeds from borrowings 57 33
Repayment of borrowings {18) (5
Dwvidends paid to shareholders {479) -
Dmidends paid to non-controling interests (96) (63)
Net cash used in financing actviies {522) (34)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (647) (2,214)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,150 8,400
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents 153 64
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 6,656 7,150

The notes and accounting policies on pages 43 to 71 form an integral part of these consoldated financial statements
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Principal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Nature of operations
YouGov plc and subsidianes’ (“the Group™) principal activity 1s the prowision of market research

YouGov plc 1s the Group’s ulimate parent company It I1s incorporated and domiciled in Great Bntain The address of YouGov plc's
registered office 15 50 Featherstane Street, London EC1Y 8RT United Kingdom YouGov plc’s shares are listed on the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange

YouGov plc's annual consolidated financial statements are presented in UK Sterling, which Is also the functional cumency of the
parent company

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of YouGov plc are for the year ended 31 July 2013 They have been prepared under the histoncal
cost convention modified for fair values under IFRS These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EU), Intemational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) Interpretations and the Compantes Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated

The parent company financial statements are prepared under UK GAAP and are detailed on pages 73 to 81

The following new standards and amendments to existing standards are now effective but have no significant iImpact on the Group
» IFRS 13, “Farr value measurement” (effective 1 January 2013),

» IAS 19 (revised 2011) "Employee benefits” (effective 1 January 2013),

« Amerdment to IFRS 1, "First time adoption”, on hypennflation and fixed dates (effective 1 July 2011) {endorsed 1 January 2013),
« Amendment to IFRS 1, "First tme adoption”, on government grants (effective 1 January 2013),

« Amendments to IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments Disclosures”, on Financial instruments asset and hability offsetting
(effective 1 January 2013),

» Annual mprovements 2011 (effective 1 January 2013),

«» IFRIC 20, "Stnpping costs in the production phase of a surface mine” (effective 1 January 2013)

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings (see Note 13) drawn up to

31 July 2013 Subsidianes are entites controlled by the Group Control s achieved where the Group has the power to govemn the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its actmties The Group obtains and exercises control through
voting nghts The Group also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but s able to
govem the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control De-facto control may anse in circumstances where the size of

the Group's voting rghts relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders gve the Group the power to govern the
financial and operating policies

All Intra-group transactions, balances, ncome and expenses are eliminated In full on consolidation Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidianes have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group

Acquisitions of subsidianes are dealt with by the acquisiton methad  The acquisition method involves the recognition at fair value of all
identiiable assets and llabilities, including contingent labiiies of the subsidiary, at the acquisiion date, regardiess of whether or not they
were recorded In the financial statements of the subsidiary pror to acquisiion On intial recogrition, the assets and habhities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of financial position at therr fair values, which are also used as the basis for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group accounting policies Goodwill 1s stated afier separating out identfiable
ntangible assets Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the farr value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Acguistion related costs are charged to the Income statement in the penod in which
they are incurred

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the Group
Disposals to non-controliing interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the Statement of Changes 1n Equity
Purchases of nan-controling interests are recognised directly in reserves, being the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the camying value of net assets of the subsiciiary
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Pnncipal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Associates and joint ventures

Entiles whose economic activiies are controlled jointly by the Group and by other venturers independent of the Group are accounted
for using the equity method Associates are those entities over whigh the Group has significant influence (defined as the power to
participate 1n the financial and operating decistons of the investee but not control or joint contro! over those policies) but which are
netther subsidianes nor Interests n joint ventures The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, under which investments in associates and
Investments in joint ventures are camed In the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture less any impaiment in the value of indmdual investments
The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisiion profits or losses is recognised In the consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movemenits in other comprehensive income 1s recogrnised in other comprehensive Income

However, when the Group's share of losses in an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture,
including any unsecured recevables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obhigations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recogrsed

Unrealised gains on transacthons between the Group and its asscciates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates or joint ventures Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impaiment of the asset transferred Amounts reported in the financial statements of associates and joint ventures have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group

Segmental analysis

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Directors

Revenue

Revenue i measured by reference to the fair value of consideration recewved or receivable by the Group for services provided,
excluding Value Added Tax and trade discounts Accrued income is the difference between the revenue recognised and the amounts
actually nvoiced to customers Where invoicing exceeds the amount of revenue recognised, these amounts are included N

deferred income

Market research
Revenue anses from the provision of market research services Within this revenue stream are syndicated and non-syndicated services

Syndicated services

Syndicated services are the consistent provision of data over a specified penod of ime Revenue 1s recognised from the point in time at
which access passwords have been made avallable to the customer Revenue is recognised in equal monthly instalments over the lfe
of the contract

Non-syndicated services

Non-syndicated services vary In size and complexity Revenue is recogrised on each contract In proportion to the level of services
performed by reference to the project manager's estimates and hme recerds against budgeted and assigned resource Revenue IS
recognised on long-term contracts, if the outcome can be assessed with reasonable certainty, by including In the ncome statement
revenue and related costs as contract actvity progresses

Non-cash transactions

The Group enters Into contracts for the provision of market research services In exchange for advertising rather than for cash or other
consideration When barter transactions are agreed the value of the work provided to the counterparty 1 equal in value to that which
would be provided in an ordinary cash transaction As required by I1AS 18 the value of advertising recevable in all significant barter
transactions is ensured to be reliably measurable by referencing to the counterparty’s rate card
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Provisions

Provistons are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when a Group company has a present obhgation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the obligation The amount recognised as a prowision 1s the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date

If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the ime value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specfic to the liability

Staff gratuly costs
The staff gratuity provision 1s a statutory obligation under UAE labour law, whereby each employee on termination of their contract 1s dus

a payment dependent upon their number of years service and nature of the termnation The liability 1s weighted against bistoncal rates
of resignation and redundancy

Panel incentive costs

The Group invites consumer panel members to fill out surveys in return for a cash or points-based incentives Although these amounts
are not paid until a predetermined target value has accrued on a panellst's account, an assessment of incentives likely 10 be pad
(present obligation) 1s made talking into account past panellist behaviour and I1s recogrised as a cost of sale in the penod in which the
service 1s provided  This assessment takes Into account the expected savings from the prize draw offered n vanous terntones

Interest

The Group receives interest Income for cash funds that are held on short-term instant access deposit Where interest receipts are
receved after the balance sheet date the interest due 1s accrued for the requisite period at the prevailing rate on the deposit

Interest 1s recognised using the effective interest method which calculates the amortised cost of a financial fiability and allocates the
interest ncome aver the relevant penod  The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected Iife of the financial asset to the net camying amount of the financial asset

Exceptional items

Iterns are highlighted as excephonal in the consohdated income statement when they are matenal in their nature or amount and when
separate disclosure 1s considered helpful In understanding the undertying performance of the business Examples include acquisiton
costs, restructuring costs and any other costs that are not incurred as part of normal operating actvites

Taxation

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countnes where the Company and tts subsidianes operate and generate taxable income Management penodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be pad to the tax authonhes

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the habiity method on temporary differences Deferred tax 1s generally provided on the
difference between the camying amaunts of assets and liabiliies and their tax bases However, deferred tax 1s not provided on the imhal
recognition of goodwall, nor on the inikal recognition of an asset or liability unless the refated transaction 1s a business combination or
affects tax or accounting profit Deferred tax on temperary differences asscciated with shares in subsidianes and joint ventures is not
provided If reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and 1t 1s probable that reversal will not occur in the
foreseeable future In additon, tax losses available to be camed forward as well as other income tax credits to the Group are assessed
for recognition as deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the undertying deductible temporary differences will be able to
be offset against future taxable income Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply to their
respective penod of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and labilites are offset when there Is a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabities and when they relate to iIncome taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and labilites on a net basis

Changes in deferred tax assets or habilities are recogrnised as a component of tax expense n the consolidated income statement,
except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity in which case the refated deferred tax is also charged
or credited directly to equity
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Financial statements

Principal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Dwidends
Dividends are recognised when the shareholders’ nght to receve payment 1s established

Goodwill

Goadwill representing the excess of the cost of acquisttion over the fair value of the Group's share of the identfiable net assets acquired
is capitalised and reviewed annually forimpaiment Goodwill 1s carmed at cost less accumulated impaiment losses If the Group's
Interest in the net fair value of the ientifiable assets, liabilities, contingent liabilikes of the acquired entity exceeds the cost of the
business combination, this value 1s recognised immediately in the consohdated income statement

On disposal of a business, goodwill 1s allocated Dased on calculated farr value of assets disposed and included n the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance intangible assets are valued at either their
directly attnbutable costs or using valuation methods such as discounted cash flows and replacement cost in the case of acquired
intangible assets

The Directors estmate the useful econamic life of each asset and use these estimates in apphying amortisation rates The Directors
penodically review economic useful life estimates

Intangible assets are stated at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impaiment

The Directors conduct an annual imparment review of Intangible assets where necessary for assets with an incefinite ife Where
impaiment anses, losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement

Amortisation of intangibie assets 1s shown on the face of the consotidated income statement

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination

In accordance with IFRS3 Business Combinations, an intangible asset acquired in a business combination 15 deemed to have a costto
the Group of its fair value at the acquisiton date The fair value of the Intangible asset reflects market expectations about the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied In the asset will flow to the Group Where an intangible asset might be separable, but only
together with a related tangible or Intangible asset, the group of assets I1s recognised as a single asset separately from goodwill where
the ndividuai farr values of the assets in the Group are not rehably measurable Where the indwmidual far value of the complementary
assels 1 reliably measurable, the Group recogrises them as a single asset provided the indmdual assets have similar useful ives
Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are typically amortised using the straight-hne method over the

following penods

Intangible asset Amortisation period
Consumer panel S years
Software and software development 5years
Customer contracts and lists 10 -11 years
Patents and trademarks 5-15 years
Order backlog 3 months —1 year

Intangible assets generated internally
Intemally generated intangible assets are only capitahised where they meet all of the following critena stipulated by IAS38

« Completion of the intangible asset 1s technically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale,

The Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell i,

» The Group has the ability to use or sell the intang(ble asset,

-

The intangible asset will generate probable future economic penefits Among other things, this requires that thereis a market for the
output from the Intangible asset or for the intangible asset ttself, or, i 115 to be used intemally, the asset will be used In generating
such benefits,

» There are adequate techrical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset,
» The expenditure attnbutable to the intangidle asset dunng its development can be measured rehably,

intemally generated ntangible assets are capitalised at therr directly attributable cost Development costs not meeting the crtena for
capitalisation are expensed as incured

Intemally generated intangible assets are amortised from the moment at which they become available for use
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Amortisation rates applicable to intemally generated intangible assets are typically

Intangibie asset Amortisation period
Software and software development 3 years
Patents and trademarks not amortised
Development costs project by project basis
Consumer panel

The consumer panel Is the core asset from which our online revenues are generated

Where a consumer panel or list 1s acquired as part of a business combination the cost of the asset is recognised at its fair vatue to the
Group at the date of acquisiton The fair value 1s calculated by management using a discounted cash flow model Amortisation 1S
charged to write off the panel acquisition costs over a five-year penod, this being the Directors’ estimate of the average active Iife of

a panellist

Consumer panel costs reflect the direct cost of recruiting new panel members Consumer panel costs are splt between enhancement
and maintenance of the asset Enhancement costs are capitalised whilst maintenance costs are expensed The split is based on
management estmates denved from current levels of pane! chum Amortisation I1s charged to wnite off the pane! acquistion costs over
a three-year penod, this being the Directors’ estimate of the average active Ife of a panelhst

Software and sofiware developrnent

Capitalised software includes our survey and panel management software and our Brandlndex platform which are key tools of our
business Software and scftware development also Includes purchased off-the-shelf scfiware

Where software 1s acquired as part of a business combination the cost of the asset Is recognised at its farr value to the Group at the date
of acquisiion The farr value Is calculated by management using a discounted cash flow model Amortisation 1s charged to wnite off the
software over a five-year penod, this being the Directors’ estimate of the useful bfe of the software

Where software s developed internally, directly atinbutable costs including employee costs are capitalised as sofiware development
Amortisation commences upon completion of the asset Amortisation is charged to write off the software over a three-year penod, this
being the Directors’ estimate of the useful life of software

Customer contract and hsls

Where a customer contract or list 1 acquired as part of a business combination the cost of the asset 1s recogrised at its farr value to the
Group at the date of acquisition The fair value IS calculated by management using a discounted cash flow model Customer contracts
and lists are amortsed over a useful econommc Ife based on Directors’ estimates

Patents and trademarks

Where a patent or trademark 1s acquired as part of a business combination the cost of the asset 1s recognised at its fair value to the
Group at the date of acquisition The fair value is calculated by management using a discounted cash flow mode!

Patents acqurred as part of a business combination are amortised over a useful economic life based on Directors’ estimates

Patents and trademarks acquired on an ongoing basis to protect the YouGov brand and its products are included at cost and are not
amortised, as the trademarks are indefinite in therr longewvity through legal nghts

Development coslts
Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) I1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which it1s incurred

The cost of an intermally generated intangible asset compnises all directly attnbutable costs necessary to create, produce, and prepare
the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
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Financial statements

Principal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Impaimment testing of goodwll, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identfiable cash flows
(cash-generating units) As a result, some assets are tested indmidually for imparrment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level Goodwill s allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the refated business
combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors the related cash flows

Gaodwill, other individual assets or cash-generating units that include goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful Ife, and
those Intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for mpaiment at least annually All other individual assets or cash-generating
units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss s recognised for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's camying amount exceeds its recoverable !
amount The recoverable amount 1s calculated as value n use based on an intemat discounted cash flow evaluaton

impairment losses recogrused for cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited intially to the carrying :
amount of goodwill Any remaning impairment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit With the '

exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an smpairment loss previously recogrised may
no longer exist

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment s camed at cost net of depreciation and any provision for imparment Cost includes the onginal
purchase price of the asset and the costs atinbutable to bnnging the asset to its working condition for its ntended use No depreciation
1s charged dunng the period of construction Leasehoid property 1s mcluded in property, plant and equipment only where 1t 1s held under
a finance lease Bormowing costs on property, plant and equipment under construction are capitalised dunng the penad of construction
based on speciic funds borrowed Depreciation is calcutated to wite down the cost less estimated residual value of all property, plant
and machinery over their estimated useful economic Ives

Asset Depraciation rate
Freehold property Straight ne over 25 years
l.easehold property improvements Straight line over the life of the lease
Fodures and fithngs 25% on a reducing balance
Computer equipment 33% per annum straight line

Motor vehicles 25% or the Iife of the lease i
\

The residual values and useful Iives of all assets are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting peniod

Leased assets

In accordance with IAS17, the economic ownership of a leased asset 1s transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantally alt the

risks and rewards related to the ownership of the feased asset The refated asset 1s recognised at the time of inception of the lease at the

fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minmum lease payments plus incidental payments, f any, to be bome

by the lessee A corresponding amount is recogrised as a finance leasing iability !

The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding and 1s charged to the w
income statement over the period of the lease

All other leases are regarded as operating leases and the payments made under them are charged to the iIncome staternent on
a straight-line basis over the lease tem Lease incentives are spread over the term of the lease

Financial assets
Financial assets are divided into the following categones loans and recewvables and available-for-sale financial assets Financial assets
are assigned to the different categones by managerment on inital recognition, depending on the purpese for which they were acquired

All financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade recevables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the

Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal temms of the recevables Significant financial difficulties of the

debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorgamisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than

30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable 1s impaired The amount of the provision 1S the difference between

the assets carrying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows, discounted at the ongnal effective interest rate

The camying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised In the |
consoldated income statement within operating expenses When a trade recevable 1s uncollectble, 1t s written off against the allowance !
account for trade recevables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in the '
consolidated income statement
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Loans and receivables are non-denvate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market
Trade recevables and other financial assets are classified as loans and recevables Loans and receivables are measured subsequent
to nibal recognition at amartised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for mparrment Any change in their value
through impaiment or reversal of impaiment 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categones

Prowision against trade recevables 1s made when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
to It In accordance with the onginal terms of those receivables The amount of the wite-down 1s determined as the difference between
the asset's camying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows

An assessment for impairment s undertaken at least at each reporting date

A financial asset 1 derecogrised only where the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire or the financial asset 1s
transferred and that transfer qualifies for derecognition A financial asset 1s transferred if the contractual nghts to recewve the cash flows
of the asset have been transferred or the Group retains the contractual nghts to receive the cash flows of the asset but assumes

a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients A financial asset that 1s transferred qualfies for derecognition
if the Group transfers substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or If the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantally all the nsks and rewards if ownership but does transfer control of that asset

Financial habilities
Financial labiites are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Financial liabiities are assigned to the different
categones by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which they were acquired

Financial labilites are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade payables are recognised intially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
They are classified as current liabilities if payment i1s due within one year or less If not, they are presented as non-current habilities

Borrowings and lease liabithes are initally recorded at the farr value which I1s typically the proceeds received, net of any i1ssue costs
and subsequently camed at amortised cost Finance charges are accounted for on an effective nterest method and are added to the
carrying vaiue of the mstrument to the extent that they are not setled in the penod in which they anse

A financial liability s derecognised only when the obligation 1s extinguished, that 1s, when the obligation 1s discharged or cancelled
or expires

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, hughly hquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value, with matunties no
longer than three months In addion, bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand are included for the purposes of the statement
of cash flows

Equity
Equity compnses the following

« Share capital represents the nominal value of equity shares,

 Share premium represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares, net of
incremental and directly attnbutable expenses of the share i1ssue,

« Merger reserve represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares 1ssued/allotted
directly to acquire another entity meeting the specific reguirements of Section 131 of the Companies Act 2006 The conditions of the
relief include

¢ Secunng at feast 90% of the nominal value of equity of another company,
« The arrangement provides for allotment of equity shares 1n the 1ssuing company,
« Foreign exchange reserve represents the differences ansing from translation of investments in overseas subsidianes,

» Retained eamings represent retained profits
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Principal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Foreign currencies

ltems ncluded 1 the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment In which the entity operates (“the functional currency”) The consolidated financial statements are presented in GBP, which
Is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation curency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction

Menetary assets and habliies in foreign curencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date Non-monetary
ftems that are measured at histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined

Any exchange differences anising on the settlement of monetary itemns or on translating monetary tems at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the penod n which they anse

Exchange differences on non-monetary tems are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income to the extent that
they relate to a gan or loss on that non-monetary item taken to the statement of changes in equity, ctherwise such gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated income statement

The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of foreign subsidianes and associates and related goodwill are translated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date Income and expenses are translated at the actual rate The exchange differences ansing from
the retranslation of the opening net investment in subsidianes and joint ventures are taken directly to the “Foreign exchange reserve”

n equity

Employee benefits

Equily-setiied share-based payment
This fair value 1s appraised at the grant date and excludes the Impact of non-market vesting conditions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment compensation plans under which the entity receives services from
emplayees as considerabon for equity instruments {options) of the Group All equity-settled share-based payments are ulimately
recogrsed as an expense in the consolidated income statement with a comesponding credit to retained eamings

If vesting periods or other non-market vesting condrtions apply, the expense 1s allocated aver the vesting penod, based on the best
avallable estimate of the number of share options expected to vest Estmates are subsequently revised If there 1s any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates

No adjustment 1s made to any expense recognised in prior penods If share options ulimately exercised are different to that eshmated
on vesting

Upon exercise of share options the proceeds received net of attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital, and where
appropnate share premium

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings n the Group 1s treated as
a capital contnbution The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, 1s recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

Terrmunation benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment s terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the empltoyment of curent employees
without possibility of withdrawal Benefits fallng due more than 12 moniths after the end of the reporting period are discounted to therr
present value

Contingent consideration

Future antcipated payments to vendors in respect of eam outs are based on the Directors’ best estimates of future obhgations, which
are dependent on the future perfermance of the interests acquired and assume the operating companies Improve profits in line with
Directors’ estimates When consideration payable 1s deferred, the fair value of the consideration 1 obtained by discounting to present
value the amounts expected to be payable in the future at a rate equivalent to a UK 10-year treasury gilt (or foreign equivalent), this
being, In the Directors’ opinion the most appropnate barometer for a nisk-free rate Subsequent changes in the amount of contingent
consideration recognised are recorded as exceptional tems in the consolidated income statement

Imputed interest

When the outflow of cash or cash equivalents 1s deferred, and the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the
consideration 1s the present value of all future payments determined using an imputed rate of interest The imputed rate of interest used
is the nsk-free rate, this being, in the Directors’ opinion the most appropnate rate The difference between the present value of all fulure
payments and the nominal amount of the consideration I1s recogrised as an interest charge Imputed interest 1s shown within finance
costs in the consolidated income statement
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Going concem

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its bank facilites The current economic conditions continue

to create uncertanty particularly over (a) the level of demand for the Group's products, and (b) the avalability of bank finance for the
foreseeable future The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show
that the Group should be able to operate without bank finance After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue 11 operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to
adopt the going concem basis in prepanng s consolidated financial statements

Accounting estimates and judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies the Directors are required to make estmates and adjustments that may affect
the financial statements The Directors believe that the estimates and judgements applied in the financial statements are reasonable

Estmates and judgements are evaluated on a regular basis and are based on histoncal expenence (where applicable) and other
factors, such as expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future These estimates, by definiion, will rarety equal the retated actual
results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nek of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labiites within the next financial year are discussed below Where estimates and judgements have been made, the key factors
taken into consideration are disclosed in the appropnate note in these consolidated financial statements

Reventie recogion

The Group 1s required to make an estimate of project completion levels on long-term contracts for revenue recognition purposes This is
based upon the project manager's estmates and avalable time records against budgeted and assigned rescurce for the inbal project
scope This Involves an element of judgement, and therefore differences may anse between the actual and estimated result Where
differences do anse, they are recognised in the consolidated income statement for the following reporing penod

Share-based payments

The Group Is required to make estimates regarding the assumptions that are used to calculate the ncome statement charge for share-
based payments Inputs to the calculations include (but are not imited to) expected volatility, expected Iife, nsk-free rate, expected
dividend yield and redemption rates Vanances in any of the inputs could lead to the charge being higher or lower than appropnate
The estimates used are disclosed 1n Note 22

Income laxes

The Group ts subject to Income taxes in vanous Junsdictions Judgement is required in determining the worldwide prowision for income
taxes There are many transachons/calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertain dunng the ordinary course of
business Where the final tax cutcome is different to what 1s initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions Income taxes are disclosed fully in Note &

Goodwilf

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impalement, N accordance with the accounting poiicy The recoverable
amount 1s based on value n use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the choice of a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present values of these cash flows The estimates used in the impaiment review are fully
disclosed in Note 10

All payments to purchase a business are recorded at far value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt
subsequently re-measured through the consolidated income statement There 1s a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisiion basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at far value or at the non-controlling interest's proporticnate share of the

acquiree’s net assets All acquisition-related costs are expensed

Other intangible assets

The Group 1s required to identify and assess the useful Ife of Intangible assets and determine f there 1S a finite or indefirute hfe
Judgement is required in determining f an intangible asset has a finite Ife and the extent of this firute ife In order to calculate the
amortisation charge on the asset The Group tests at each reporting date whether intangible assets have suffered any indicators of
impaiment, n accordance with the accounting policy The recoverable amount of cash-generating units has been determined based
on discounted future cash flows These calculations require estimates to be made Where there 15 no method of valuation for an
intangible asset, management will make use of a valuation technique to determine the value of an intangible If there 1s no evidence

of a market value In daing so certain assumptions and estimates willbe made Intangible assets are fully disclosed in Note 11

Pane/ incenive provision

The Group 1s required to assess the lIkelihood that panel incentives earned Dy consumer panel members will be redeemed and maintain
a provision to cover this potential labihty Factors taken into consideration include the absolute iability, redemption rates and panel
activity rates Whist histoncal data can indicate trends and behaviours it 1s not an indication of the future In amving at the carrying value
of the provision certain assumptions and estimates have to be made The estimates used in calculating the panel incentive provision are
fully disclosed in Note 18
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Principal Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Deferred laxation

Judgement 1s required by management in determining whether the Group should recogrise a deferred tax asset Management consider
whether there 1s sufficient certainty that its tax losses available to cary forward will ulimately be offset against future eamings

This judgement impacts on the degree to which deferred tax assets are recognised Deferred taxation 15 disclosed fully in Note 19

Contingent consideration

As part of the acquisitions, contingent consideration 1 payable to selling shareholders based on the future performance of the
businesses Judgement 1s required In estimating the magnitude of contingent cansideration and the ikehhood of payment Contingent
consideration is disclosed fully in Note 17

Standard and interpretations in i1ssue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to existing standards and interpretations are not yet effective, and have not been applied
in prepanng these consolidated financial statements None of these 1s expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out below

IFRS10, “Consoldated financial statements”
Builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor N whether an entity should be included wathin
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company The standard provides additional gudance to assist In the determination of
control where this 1s difficult to assess

IFRS11, “Joint armangements”

Provides for a more realistic reflecton of joint amangements by focusing on the nghts and obligations of the arangement, rather than its
legal form There are two types of joint arrangement joint operations and joint ventures Joint operations anse where a joint operator has
nghis to the assets and obligations relating to the arrangement and hence accourts for its interest in assets, liabities, revenue and
expenses Jomt ventures anse where the joint operator has nghts to the net assets of the arangement and hence equity accounts for its
interest Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is no longer allowed

IFRS12 “Disclosures of interests in other entities”
Includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests 0 other entities, including joint arangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and other off-balance-sheet vehicles

{AS27 (revised 2011) *Separate financial statements”
Includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left after the control provisions of 1AS27 have been ncluded in the
new IFRS10

[AS28 (revised 2011) “Associates and joint ventures”
Includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted following the ssue of IFRS11

Amendments fo IFRS10, 11 and 12 on transifion guidance

Prowvide additional transition relief n IFRSs 10, 11 and 12, limiting the reguirement to provide adjusted comparative information 1o only
the preceding comparative penod For disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entibes, the amendments will remove the
requirement to present comparative information for penods before IFRS12 1s first applied

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of the standards on its results, financial posttion and cash flows and intends to adopt them
no later than the accounting penod beginnung on 1 August 2014

The Group continues to monitor the potential impact of other new standards and interpretations which may be endorsed by the
European Union and require adoption by the Group in future accounting penods
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2013

1 Revenue and profit before taxation
Segmental analysis
For internal reporting purposes the Group 1S crganised Into six operating dmisions based on geographic ines — UK, Middle East,

Germany, Nordic, USA and France These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its segmental information The Group onty
undertakes one class of business, that of market research

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directars (which is the

“chief operating decision-maker”) The Board of Directors review information based on geographic ines — UK, Middle East. Germany,
Nordic, USA and France These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports ts segmental information The Group only
undertakes one class of business, that of market research

Middle Comsolita oA
3 £0% fom o oo e Eme Ee TR
Revenue
External sales 17,055 7,252 9,051 8,438 20,619 136 - 62,551
Inter-segment sales 334 63 330 54 176 203 (1,160) —
Total revenue 17,389 7.315 9,381 8,492 20,795 339 (1,180) 62,551
Inter-segment sales are pnced on an anm's-Jength basis that would be avallable to unrelated third parties
Segment result
Gross profit 12,777 5,532 7,493 6,720 14,210 267 112 47,11
Adjusted operating profit 4,437 1,547 830 345 2,274 (91) (3410) 5982
Amortisation of intangibles {(469) (76) (136) {443) (640) (15) (1,501) (3,280)
Exceptional costs {70) - {27) (454) (342) - (319) (1,212)
Finance income 207
Finance costs (89)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (122)
Profit before taxation 1,486
Tax credit 623
Profit after taxation 2109
Other segment information
Depreciation 74 99 105 49 65 2 145 539
Share-based payments - - - - - - 767 767
Assets
Segment assets 29,992 7,847 16,898 13,392 32,788 470 (17,560} 83,827
Investments in associates 363
Total assets 84,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Revenue and profit before taxation continued

Consolidation
Madle and
UK East Germany Nordic USA France  unaliocated Group
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
External sales 15,543 5,827 9,067 8710 18965 33 — 58,145
Inter-segment sales 176 172 330 101 224 122 (1,125) -
Total revenue 15,719 5,999 9,397 8,811 19,189 155 (1,125) 58,145
inter-segment sales are pnced on an anm's-length basis that would be avallable to unrelated third partes
Consclicatan
Miadle and
UK East Gamany Nerdic USA France  unallocated Group
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Segment result
Gross profit 11,511 4,459 7,280 7,016 14,435 136 (101) 44,746
Ad\usted operating profit 3,719 1,312 647 767 2,675 (173) (3,362) 5,585
Amortisation of mtangibles (287) (93) (203) (552) (1,777) - (1,438) (4,350)
Exceptional costs (146) (283) (357) - 378 - (84) (472)
Finance income 94
Finance costs (334)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 83)
Profit before taxation 440
Tax charge (79)
Profit after taxaton 361
Other segment information
Depreciation 98 108 47 41 102 - 197 593
Share-based payments - - - - ~ 641 641
Assets
Segment assets 23,069 8275 14,763 12,788 25424 256 (12,128) 76447
investments in associates 485
Total assets 76,932
Differences between the cngin and destination of revenue are material to the Group Revenue by destination Is presented below
Consolidation
Middle and
UK East Germany Noedic USA France  unallocated Group
013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
External sales 17,683 6,071 9,080 8,441 21,036 240 - 62551
Inter-segment sales 852 107 351 214 699 13 (2,236) -
Total revenue 18,535 6,178 9,431 8,655 21735 253 (2,236) 62,551
Consoldation
Miciclle anc
UK East Genrau& Nordic UsA France  unallocated Group
2012 £000 £000 £ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
External sales 16,482 4,100 8,820 8,750 18,750 143 - 58,145
Inter-segment sales 900 194 330 208 410 8 (2,050) -
Total revenue 17,382 4,294 9,250 8,958 20,160 151 (2,050) 58,145

Inter-segment sales are pnced an an amm's-length basis that would be avaiable to unrelated third parties
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2 Operating expenditure
The profit before taxation I1s stated after charging
o0 %0
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable for the audit of the parent company and the consolidated financial statements 148 145
Audtt of subsidianes pursuant to legislation 45 53
Audit related assurance services 31 27
Tax compliance services 53 27
Tax advisory semvices 63 34
Other advisory services 70 -
Disposals, depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 539 593
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 11) 3,280 4,350
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets - 38
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 g7
Other operating lease rentals*
Plant and machinery 121 97
Land and bulldings 1,405 1,480
Other expenses
Exchange differences 47 184
Share-based payment expenses (Note 22) 767 641
Chantable donations 73 51
3 Staff numbers and costs
Staff costs (including Directors) charged to operating expenses dunng the year were as follows
o 2506
Wages and salanes 25,307 23,730
Social secunty costs 2,558 2463
Share-based payments (Note 22) 767 641
Pension costs 398 463
Qther benefits 1,928 1,908
Acquisiion cost deemed as staff compensation® 102 87
31,060 29,292
* Part of the acquisiton cost relating to Definive Insights 18 deemed as staff compensaton and treated as an excepbonal cost as disclosed in Note 4
Pension costs are contnbutions are made on behalf of employees to defined contribution pension schemes
Other benefits include staff bonuses and pnvate healthcare insurance
The average number of employees of the Group dunng the year was as follows
Nurrzglea Nuzrgt?)gr
Key management personne! 19 20
Administration and operations 483 462
502 482

*Thedennmonofkeymanagememhasbeenrevsed|nn'1eyearimndudemiytmepBoardanannsonaI Product and Funclion Heacts and the prior year comparative has been restated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Staff numbers and costs continued
Specific disclosures in relation to compensaton for key management personnel who held office dunng the year was as follows

Short-term emplayee benefits 2,788 2,775
Post-employment benefits 44 43
Share-based payments 602 476

3,434 3,294

*Restated

Disclosure of Directors’ remuneration Including share options are included in the Remuneration Report on pages 29 to 31, which form
part of the financial statements

4 Exceptional costs

2013 2012

£000 £000

Restructunng costs 645 644
Acquisition related costs 255 132
Change In accounting estimation — cantingent consideration 35 {355)
Adjustment to Hamson Group’s acquired balance sheet - (117)
Employment termination 205 168
Panel closure costs 72 -
1,212 472

Restructunng costs in the year pnmarly relate to the restructunng of the Nordic business to improve performance and the cost of
reorganising the UK and Group management structures Restructunng costs in the priar year pnmanly refate to the closing of the
Company’s operations In Iraq and further rationalisation activity in Germany

Acquisition related costs in the curent and pror penods include £102,000 of contingent consideration In respect of the Definitive
Insights acauistion that 1s deemed under IFRS3 to be staff compensation cost £136,000 incurred inrelation o a prospective acquisition
with which the Group decided not to proceed and £18,000 In respect of the acquisttion of a shareholding 1n Doughty Medha 2 which was
completed in September 2013 Acquistion related costs in the prior financial year include £87,000 of contingent consideration in respect
of the acquisition of Definiive Insights deemed under IFRS3, to be staff compensation costs and £45,000 of professional fees In respect
of acquisitions i the previous year and abortive jont-ventures

The change in esimated contingent consideration COMQnses a charge of £70,000 in respect of the acquisition of Clear Honizons,

a credit of £16,000 in respect of the Harnson Group acquisiion and a credit of £19,000 n respect of the Definitive Insights acquisition
The change 1N estrmated contingent consideration I the prior year compnses a credit of £434,000 in respect of the Hamson Group
acquistion and a charge of £79,000 in respect of the Definitive Insights acguisition

Duning the priar year the fair value of the Hamson Group assets acquired was increased by £117,000, as the allowable penod of time
for finalising the valuation under IFRS3 had ended, this adjustment was treated as an exceptional itiem

Employment termination costs relate to redundancies made in the US Employment terminaticn costs in the pnor year relate to
redundancies made in the UK and the Middle East

Panel closure costs arose as a result of the decision taken in the year to close the YouGov Panel in Chile
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5 Finance income and costs

£2'&1)l:"l 2012
Interest recevable from bank deposits 27 79
Other nterest receivable - 5
Dividends receved 41 10
Foreign exchange gains on cash and intra-Group loans 139 -
Total finance income 207 o4
Interest payable an bank loans and overdrafts 10 4
Interest on obligations under hire purchase and finance leases 4 1
Foreign exchange losses on cash and intra-Group loans 4 179
18 184
Imputed interest on contingent consideration and provisions 71 150
Total finance costs 89 334
6 Income taxes
The taxation charge represents
o 006
Current tax on profits for the year 294 400
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 196 -
Total current tax charge 490 400
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (89) (498)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years {1,130} 61
Impact of changes In tax rates 106 16
Total deferred tax credit (1,113) (321)
Total ncome statement tax (credit)/charge {623) 79
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2012 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
The differences are explaned below
Zo Fo0
Profit before taxation 1,486 440
Tax charge calculated at Group's standard rate of 23 7% (2011 25 3%) 352 111
Vanance In overseas tax rates (177) (286)
Impact of changes n tax rates 108 118
Gains not subject to tax {10} (109)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 134 44
Tax losses for which no defefted income tax asset was recognised (123) 121
Adjustment n respect of pnor years (934) 61
Associates results reported net of tax 29 21
Total income statement tax (credity/charge for the year (623) 79
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

7 Dividend

On 17 December 2012, a maiden final dvidend in respect of the year ended 31 July 2012 of £479,000 (0 5p per share) was paid to
shareholders A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 July 2013 of 0 6p per share, amounting 1o a total dvidend of £677,000 s t0
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 11 December 201 3 These financial statements do not reflect this proposed
dmdend payable

8 Eamings per share

The caleulation of the basic eamings per share Is based on the earmings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue dunng the year Shares held in employee share trusts are treated as cancelled for the purposes of
this calculation

The calculation of diuted earmings per share is based on the basic eamings per share, adjusted to allow for the 1ssue of shares and the
post-tax effect of dvidends and/or interest, on the assumed conversion of all dilutive options and cther dilutive potential Ordinary Shares

The adjusted eamings per share has been calculated to refiect the undertying profitability of the business by excluding the amortisation
of Intangible assets, share-based payments, imputed interest, impairment charges, exceptional tems and any related tax effects

Fo 5%
Profit after taxation attnbutable to equity holders of the parent company 2,042 333
Add amortisation of intangible assets 3,280 4,350
Add share-based payments 767 641
Add imputed interest 71 150
Add exceptional costs 1,212 472
Tax effect of the above adjustments and exceptional tax dems {2,060) (1,283)
Adjusted profit after taxation 5,312 4,663
Reconciiations of the eamings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below

2013 2012

Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares during the period (000 shares)
—Basic 95,639 95,141
— Dilutive effect of share optons 7,535 5,856
- Diluted 103,174 101,097
The adjustments have the following effect
Basic profit per share 21p 04p
Amortisation of Intangible assets 3.4p 4 6p
Share-based payments 0.8p 06p
Imputed Interest 01p 02p
Exceptional costs and impairments 1.3p 05p
Tax effect of the above adjustments and exceptional tax tems (21p) (14p)
Adjusted eamings per share 5.6p 49p
Diluted profit per share 20p 03p
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.2p 43p
Share-based payments 0.7p 06p
Imputed interest 0.0p 01p
Exceptional costs and impairment 1.2p 05p
Tax effect of the above adjustments and exceptional tax tems (2 0p) (12p)

Adjusted diluted earmings per share 51p 46p
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9 Business combinations and disposals

Dunng the prior year the Group invested £0 1m in retum for an additional 5% stake in CoEditor Limited increasing its shareholding

1o 30% The majonty shareholder 1s Doughty Media 2 (60% owned by Stephan Shakespeare, an Executive Director of YouGov plc)

CoEditor has developed software in the field of news and content aggregation which will be provided exclusively to YouGov for the
purpose of providing dedicated content and activities for memibers of YouGov's online panels YouGov also has options to acquire
additional shares, which will enable it to benefit from increases in CoEditor's equity value resulting from its business development

Subsequent to the end of the financial year YouGov has acquired a 40% shareholding in Doughty Media 2 increasing its effective
ownership of CoEditor Limited to 57% More detalls of this post balance sheet event are disclosed In Note 27

10 Goodwiill
Middla

0% o 3 oo 500
Carrying amount at 1 August 2011 1,342 16,435 8,642 11,376 37,795
Rewvision o initial camying values - 413) - - (413)
Exchange differences 63 792 (817) (1,181) (1,143)
Carrying amount at 31 July 2012 1.405 16,814 7.825 10,195 36,239
Exchange differences 44 523 857 1,137 2,561
Carrying amount at 31 July 2013 1,449 17,337 8,682 11,332 38,800
At 31 July 2013
Cost 1,449 17,337 8,682 13,845 41,313
Accumulated impairment - - - {2,513) (2,513)
Net book amount 1,449 17,337 8,682 11,332 38,800

In accordance with the Group's accounting pohcy, the carrying values of goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed annually for
impairment The cash-generating units (CGUs) are consistent with those segments shown in Note 1 The 2013 impairment review was
undertaken as at 31 July 2013 The recoverable amounts of all CGUs have been determined based on value 1n use calculations

This review assessed whether the camying value of goodwill was supported by the net present value of future cash flows denved from
assets using an inhial projection period of three years for each CGU based on approved budget numbers Beyond that, EBITDA growth
was assumed to be 5% for years four and five, which 1s conservative both in companson with their histoncal performance and annual
growth rates in the Intemet based market research sector Annual growth rates of 2 5% have been assumed In perpetulty beyond

year five The pre-tax weighted average costs of capital used to discount the future cash flows to therr present values are between

10% and 17% (2012 between 10% and 18%) All CGUs, when subjected to sensrivity analyses, decreasing assumed EBITDA growth
by 10% and increasing the discount rate by 1% point in each year, including the terminal value year, had sufficient headroom to suppor
their camying value
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11 Other intangible assets

Software snd Customer

Consumer software contracts Patents and Order Development
- I o i i ] £

At 1 August 2011
Cost 8,566 6,384 5,459 3,125 229 577 24,340
Accumulated amortisation B.775) (3,538) (1,030) (1,194} (223) (153} (12,913)
Net book amount 1,791 2,846 4,429 1,931 6 424 11,427
Year ended 31 July 2012
Opening net book amount 1,791 2,848 4429 1,931 3] 424 11,427
Additions

Separately acquired 560 522 - 3 - - 1,085

Fair value revision - - (762) {25) (N - (794)

internally developed - 1,574 - - - 44 1,618
Disposals - - - (2) - (36) (38)
Amortisation charge

Business combinations (1,060) (186) {428) (369) - - (2,043)

Separately acquired (423) (554) - - - (174) (1,151)

Internally developed - {1,139) - - - (17) (1,156)
Exchange differences (257) (50) a8 (120) 1 (16) (404)
Closing net book amount 611 3,013 3,277 1,418 - 225 8,544
At 31 July 2012
Cost 9,051 8,238 4,702 2973 218 548 25,730
Accumulated amortisation (8,440) (5,225) (1,425) (1,555) {218) (323) (17,186)
Net book amount 611 3,013 3,277 1,418 - 225 8,544
Year ended 31 July 2013 ,
Opening net bock amount 611 3,013 3,277 1,418 - 225 8,544
Additions

Separately acquired 649 852 - 11 - 247 1,759

Intemally developed - 1,811 - - - 68 1,879
Amortisation charge

Business combinations - - (479) (332) - - (811)

Separately acquired (422) (624) - (2) - (104) (1,152)

Internally developed - {1,300) - - - {17) {(1,317)
Exchange differences 49 16 143 89 - 11 308
Closing net book amount 887 3,768 2,941 1,184 - 430 9,210
At 31 July 2013
Cost 10,142 10,983 4,363 3,197 232 900 30,417
Accumulated amortisabion (9,255) (7,215) (2,022) (2,013) (232) (470) (21,207)

Net book amount 887 3,768 2,941 1,184 - 430 9,210
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Freohold m Computer Hmﬁ Motor
s T P a0 "% v'go0 £o60

At 1 August 2011
Cost 1,333 329 2,038 1,252 118 5,070
Accumulated depreciation (131) (270) {1,397) {828) (106) (2.732)
Net book amount 1,202 59 641 424 12 2,338
Year ended 31 July 2012
Opening net book amount 1,202 59 641 424 12 2,338
Additions

Separately acquired - 69 446 101 8 624
Disposals - 3 (15) {79} - (97)
Depreciation (53) (45) (444) (40) (11} (593}
Reclassificatons 32 - 55 (87) - -
Exchange differences 57 5 (n (3) - 38
Closing net book amount 1,238 75 672 316 9 2,310
At 31 July 2012
Cost 1,463 384 1,951 919 73 4,790
Accumulated depreciation (225) (309) (1.279) (603) (64) (2,480)
Net book amount 1,238 75 672 316 9 2,310
Year ended 31 July 2013
Opening net book amount 1,238 75 672 316 9 2,310
Additions

Separately acquired - 2 328 66 15 411
Disposals - - 3) - - 3)
Depreciation {49) {(17) (378) (89) (6) (539)
Exchange differences 37 4 17 18 1 77
Closing net book amount 1,226 64 636 KE ]| 19 2,256
At 31 July 2013
Cost 1,449 376 2,439 1,018 74 5,356
Accumulated depreciation (223) (312) {1,803) (707) (55) (3,100)
Net book amount 1,226 64 636 311 19 2,256

The cost of assets held under finance leases 1s £93,000 (2012 £31,000) and accumulated depreciation is £7,000 (2012 £1,000)

All property, ptant and equipment disclosed above, with the exception of those tems held under lease purchase agreement, are free
from restnctions on title No property, plant and equipment ether in 2013 or 2012 has been pledged as secunty aganst the liabilities

of the Group
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

13 Investments

(a) Interests in subsidianes
As at 31 July 2013 the Group's trading subsidianes were

Proportion held
Country of Class of shara By parenm By the

tncorporation caprtal held corpany Group . Nanne of the business
YouGov MEFZ LLC UAE Ordinary  100%  100% Market research
YouGov Deutschland AG Germany Ordinary  100%  100% Market research
Service Rating GmbH Germany Qrdinary 0% 100% Rating agency
BeField GmbH' Germany Ordinary 0%  70% CATI supplier company
YouGov Nordic and Baltic A/S Denmark Ordnary  100%  100% Market research
YouGov Sweden AB Sweden Ordinary 0% 100% Market research
YouGov Norway AS Norway Ordinary 0%  100% Market research
YouGov Finland OY Finland Crdinary 0% 100% Market research
YouGov Amenca Inc USA Ordinary 0% 100% Market research
HG Acquistion LLC USA QOrdinary 0% 100% Market research
Defintive Insights Inc USA Crdinary 0% 100% Market research
YouGov France SASU France Ordinary  100%  100% Market research

' Formerty Psychonomecs Field GmioH
All subsichanes have co-terminus year ends and are ncluded in the consolidated financial statements
(b) Interest in joint ventures and associates

3 Mg&g K1} JW};‘ZSE)S
Total fixed asset investments compnse.
Carrying amount at 1 August 485 468
Acquisttion of associate - 100
Share of loss in assoclate (122) 83)
Interest in joint ventures and associates 363 485
The Group has not recognised losses amounting to £10,000 {2012 £3,000) for YouGov Centaur LLP
At 31 July 2013 the Group had nterests In the following joint ventures and assoclates
Proportion held
ostmant incamin O mmahoa  compay  Gloup N raness yanr ond
Specialist business to
YouGovCentaur LLP Joint Venture England Crdinary 50% 50% business research 30 June
CoEditor Limited Associate England Ordinary 30% 30% Website developer 31 July
The Group's share of the revenue and operating loss and assets and liabities of joint ventures and associates are
CoEditor Limited YouGov Centaur LLP

31 July EZ‘QO;.‘)S 1 Julyégag N Jtdyéﬂc:’:'; 31 July EZ'DU&%
Revenue - - - -
Expenses (122) {83) (10) (3)
Loss after tax (122) (83) {10} (3)
Non-current assets 124 90 1 1
Curmrent assets 8 9 43 43
Cumrent habiibes (11) (17 (162) (152)
Non-current habilities {199) (33) - -
Net (habilities)assets (78) 49 {118) (108}

Subsequent to the end of the financial year YouGov has acquired a 40% shareholding in Doughty Media 2, the majority shareholder
of CoEdttor Limtted, increasing its effective ownership of CoEditor Limited to 57% More details of this post balance sheet event are
disclosed in Note 27




YouGov
Annual Report and Accounts 2013 | 63

g
§
4
14 Trade and other receivables
N J\lygglog 31 Mt‘zgg)g
Trade recewables 13,564 10,704
Amounts owed by related parties 205 192
Loans to related parties 646 100 —
Other recevables 620 895 _3
Prepayments and accrued income 8,066 7.460 g
23,101 19351 §
Provision for trade recevables (150) (120) g
22,951 19,231 c
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to their fair value
Loans to related parties relate to amounts advances to fund working capital, na interest 1s charged
As at 31 July 2013, trade receivables of £8,750,000 (2012 £7,285,000) and amounts owed by related parties of £205,000 (2012 —
£192,000) were overdue but notimpaired These relate to a number of customers for which there 1s no recent history of default or any H
other Indication that the recevable should not be fully collectible The ageing analysis of past due trade recevables which are not §
impared 1s as follows §
31duty 23 314y 2012 &
Up to three months overdue 4,959 4,529
Three to six months overdue 1,636 1,595
S months to one year overdue 2,060 848
Mare than one year overdue 95 313
8,750 7285 —
Movement on the Group provision for iImpairment of trade receivables 1s as follows §
Provision for receivables impairment at 1 August 120 162 =
Prowision created in the year 128 Q0 g
Provision utilised in the year (105) (129) f
Exchange differences 7 (3
Prowision for receivables impairment at 31 July 150 120

The creation and release of the provision for imparred recevables has been included in the consolidated income statement The other
classes within trade and other recevables do not contain impaired assets The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date
I the carrying value of each class of recervable mentioned above The Group does not hold any collateral as security

The average length of ime taken by customers to settle recevables 1 68 days (2012 63 days) Concentrations of credit nsk do exist
with certain clients with which we have trading relationships but none has a history of default and all command a certain stature within
the marketplace which minimises any potential nsk of default Matenal balances (clefined as greater than £250,000 (2012 greater than
£250,000)) represent 17% of trade recetvables (2012 8%)

At 31 July 2013, £544,000 (DKK 4 6m) (2012 £453,000 (DKK 4 3m)) of the trade and other recevables of YouGov Nordic and Baltic A/S
was used as secunty agamnst a loan and revolving overdraft facility held by YouGov Nerdic and Baltic A/VS

YouGov Deutschland AG has secured a value of up to £nil (2012 £20,000 (€25,000) in the event of default on rental payments against
its trade and other recevables
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

15 Cash and cash equivalents

31 July 2013 31 .Juty 2012
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 6,929 4,179
Short-term bank deposits - 3,298
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafis) 6,929 7477
Cash and cash equivalents are held at either vanable rates or al rates fixed for penods of no longer than three months
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flows
B3 Jllyﬂ?‘.g;g 3 Juhfégag
Cash and cash equivalents 6,929 7477
Bank overdrafts (273) (327)
Cash and cash equivalents excluding overdrafts 6,656 7.180
Bank overdrafis are denominated n Damish Krone and bear interest at 3 2%
16 Trade and other payables
31 July 2013 31 July 2012
£000 £000
Trade payables 1,991 1,998
Accruals and deferred income 11,965 8,528
Other payables 2,279 1,927
16,235 12,453

The average length of time taken by the Group to settle payables 1s 31 days (2012 35 days) The Drrectors consider that the carrying

amount of trade payables approximates to therr fair value

17 Contingent consideration
Clear Harrison

Definitive

s o "800 £
At 1 August 2011 425 3,586 1,653 5,664
Settled dunng the year (152) (2,244) (117} (2,513)
Released dunng the year - {444) (639) (1,083)
Discount unwinding 14 68 35 17
Foreign exchange differences 19 148 7 174
Balance at 31 July 2012 306 1,114 939 2,359
Included within current habilties 306 1,114 488 1,906
Included within non-current habibties - - 453 453
Settled dunng the year (377) (1,126} (520) {2.023)
Provided durng the year 70 - 102 172
Released dunng the year - (16) (19) (35)
Discount unwinding - 25 33 58
Foreign exchange differences 1 3 16 20
Balance at 31 July 2013 - - 551 551
Included within current habilites - - 301 301
Included within non-current habilities - - 250 250
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18 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Panel Staff

e 0 T fo
At 1 August 2011 2,910 132 3,042
Provided durnng the year 3,149 74 3,223
Utihsed dunng the year (2.,808) (23) (2,831}
Released dunng the year (480) {12} (492)
Discount unwinding 33 - 33
Foreign exchange differences (32) 7 {25)
Balance at 31 July 2012 2,772 178 2,950
Included within current labilities 2,150 - 2,150
included within non-current habiliies 622 178 800
Provided during the year 4219 104 4,323
Utihsed duning the year (3,701) (10) (3,711)
Released dunng the year (159) (2) (161)
Discount unwinding 13 - 13
Foreign exchange differences 85 8 93
Balance at 31 July 2013 3,229 278 3,507
Included wathin current habilities 2,737 - 2,737
Included within non-current habilites 492 278 770

The panel Incentive provision represents the Directors' best estimate of the future liability in relation to the value of panel ncentives that

nhave accrued in the panellists’ virtual accounts up to 31 July 2013 The prowision of £

3 2m represents 34% of the maximum potential

habuity of £9 4m (2012 £2 8m representing 30% of the total hiability of £9 2m) The factors considered in estimating the appropnate
percentage of the tatal liability to be provided agamnst at each reporting date include panel chum rates, panel actvity rates, current

redemption patterns and the time valug of money
The staff gratuity prowision 1s a statutory obligation under UAE labour law, whereby each employee on termination of their contract 1s due
a payment dependent upen ther number of years service and nature of the termination  The liability of £0 3m at 31 July 2013 (2012
£0 2m) represents the hability that the Group 1s obliged to pay as at the reporting date weighted against histoncal rates of resignation
and redundancy
19 Deferred taxation assets and liabilities
Intangible m Tax Other timing

Deterred tax asset *Foon P Mo e oo Foo
Balance at 1 August 2011 - 45 1,894 - 1,939
Recogmised 1n the Income statement 142 104 (680) 516 82
Recognised in other comprehensive income - - g5 - g5
Recognised in equity - - - 144 144
Foreign exchange differences - (1) (48) (7) (56)
Balance at 31 July 2012 142 148 1,261 653 2,204
Recognised in the income statement 47 4 38 508 503
Recognised In other comprehensive Income - - (73} - (73)
Recognised 1n equity - - - 91 91
Foreign exchange differences - 1 a0 N 122
Balance at 31 July 2013 95 153 1,316 1,283 2,847
£558,000 of the ahove deferred tax assets are expected to recovered within one year
The deferred taxation asset in respect of income tax losses are broken down by Jjunsdiction as follows

31 Jl.ﬂy[mg 3 Jtﬂy£2‘gélx2)
UK 243 475
Nordic 796 732
USA 165 -
France 112 54

1,316 1,261

HNuarnnaw

Ninaratine rauviow |

frvarnancra |

Ewnanrial etatamante

A Additianal indarmatian




YouGov
Annual Report and Accounts 2013

66

Fimnancial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19 Deferred taxation assets and liabilities continued

Deferred tax assets have been recognised only to the extent where management budgets and forecasts show sufficient profits being
generated to discharge these in the short term  Utilisation of tax losses 15 dependable upon future profits being generated

e D U -
Deferred tax [abilities £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 August 2011 3,112 168 3 3611
Recognised In the income statement (241) (164) 168 (239)
Farr value revision (334) - - (334)
Foreign exchange differences (162) &) (98) (264)
Balance at 31 July 2012 2,375 - 399 2,774
Recognised in the income statement (532) - (78) (610)
Foreign exchange differences 136 - 27 163
Balance at 31 July 2013 1,979 - 348 2,327
£327,000 of the above deferred tax habilities are expected to be recovered within one year
The gross movement on the deferred income tax accountis as follows

2m3 2012

£000 £000
Balance at 1 August (570) (1.672)
Acquisition of subsichary - 334
Recognised In the mcome statement 1,113 321
Recogrised in other comprehensive income (73) 95
Recognised in equity | 144
Foreign exchange differences (41) 208
Balance at 31 July 520 (570)

20 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group 1s exposed to forexgn currency, liquidity and interest rate risk, which result from both its operating and investing actviies
The Group's nisk management 1s co-ordinated in close co-operation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on actively secunng the
Group's short-to-medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial markets The most significant financial nisks to which
the Group 1s exposed to are descnbed below Also refer to the accounting policies

Foreign currency nsk
The Group 15 exposed to transiation and transaction foreign exchange risk The currencies where the Group 1s most exposed to volatihity
are US Dollars, Euro, UAE Dirham and Danish Kroner

Currently, the Group aims to align assets and liabilties in a particular market The Group will continue to review its currency nsk position
as the overall business profile changes

The presentaticnal and transactional currency of the Group 1s considered to be UK Sterling

Fareign currency denominated financial assets and fiabiities, translated into UK Sterfing at the closing rate are as follows

2013 2012

£'000 £000
us Euro Dirham Other us Euro Dwham Other
$ € AED currencies $ € AED cumencies
Financial assets 4,217 5,022 1,890 1,782 7,804 4,419 4,498 2167
Financial iabilties (3,552) (1,745) (721) (1,569) (4311) (1,733) (506) (1,864)
Short-term exposure 665 3,277 1,169 213 3,493 2,686 3,992 303
Financial assets - - - - - - - -
Financial labities (252) (52) - - (453) (23) - -

Long-term exposure (252) {52) - - (453) (23) — -
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20 Risk management objectives and policies continued

The effect of UK Sterling strengthening by 1% against our subsidianes’ functional currencies (US Dollar, Euro, UAE Dirham and Other
currencies) would have had the following impact upon translation

3 2012
£000 £000
us Euro Ditham Other us Eurg Dirham Other
$ € AED currencies 5 € AED cuTeNCIeS
Net resutt for the year (12) - (11) 4 9 2 {11) 9
Equity (23) 28 (52) 3 (10) 46 (99) 4

If the UK Sterling had weakened by 1% against the US Dollar, Euro, UAE Dirham and Other curencies the inverse of the Impact above
would apply

The Group manages currency fluctuations as cutined in the Corporate Govemnance Report on page 28

Liquidity nsk
The Group seeks to manage financial nsk by ensunng sufficient hguidity 1s avallable to meet foreseeable needs and to nvest cash
assets safely and profitably

The Group currently has no general borrowing arrangement in place (although specific fixed value borrowings are held within the
Group) and prepares cash flow forecasts which are reviewed at Board meetings to ensure Iiguidity

As at 31 July 2013, the Group's liabilihes have undiscounted contractual matunties which are summarised below

Current Non-current
Within 6 months 6t0 12 months 1-5ysars  Lator than § years
£000 £'000 £000 E£'000
Borrowings 273 - - -
Finance lease liabilities 17 14 55 -
Trade and cther payables 4125 114 - -
Contingent consideration - 301 250 -

This compares to the maturty of the Group's financial labilities in the previous reporting penod as follows

Cument Nen-cuent
mmlnﬁmg%%(s) 61012 ng%lgg 14&% Later than SEeO%rS
Borrowings 327 - - -
Finance lease habilihies 10 9 42 -
Trade and other payables 3,575 350 - -
Contingent consideration 306 1,709 543 —

The Group has sufficient financial nsk management polictes in place to ensure that all trade payables are settled within the respective
credit penod

Capital nsk management

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that all enbties within the Group are abte to continue as a going concemn The Board has taken
the decision at this stage to minimise external delot, whilst trying to maximise eamings from the cash currently held Capital consists of
the following items

1 July 2013 3 Juy 2012
Borrowings (bank overdrait) (273) {327)
Cash and cash equivalents 6,929 7477
Equity attnibutable to shareholders of the parent company (61,083) (55,549)

(54,427) (48,799)

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirements

Interest rate nsk

The Group manages Its Interest rate nsk by negotiating fixed interest rates on deposits for penods of up to three months The average
cash and cash equivalents balance, net of bank overdrafts, over the course of the year was £5 3m (2012 £8 3m) attracting an average
Interest rate of 0 3% (2012 0 9%) if interest rates had been 1% higher dunng the year ended 31 July 2013 the increase to profit before
tax would have been £52,000 (2012 £83,000) If interest rates had been 1% lower during the year ended 31 July 2013 the reduction in
profit before tax would have been £22,000 (2012 £50,000) The Impact upon shareholders” equity would have been an increase of
£48,000 (2012 £69,000) and a decrease of £21,000 (2012 £47 000) respectively

Mararow

OAnarating reviowr ‘

Avarnanca |

Einanrial ctatamante l

Addhinnal infarmatian |




68 YouGov
Annual Repert and Accounts 2013

Financial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

20 Risk management objectives and policies continued
Farr values of financial assets and financial habilites

Where market values are not avallable, farr vaiues of financial assets and financial iiabilies have been calculated by discounting
expected future cash flows at prevaiing interest rates and by applying year end foreign exchange rates

Pnmary financial nstruments held or 1ssued to finance the Group's operations

31 Juty 2013 31 July 2012

Book ;alog Fair ;aalogen Bookséa% Far anhdg
Trade and other recewvables 22,069 22,069 18,378 18,378
Cash and cash eqguivalents 6,929 6,929 7477 7477
Trade and other payables (10,062) {10,062) (12,920) (12,920)
Bank overdrafts (273) (273) (327) (327)
Contingent consideration
— Non-current (250) (250) (453) (453)
- Current (301) (301) (1,906) (1.906)
21 Share capital and share premium
The Company only has cne class of share Par value of each Ordinary Share 1s 0 2p All issued shares are fully paid

Mumber of Sora mﬁ'&.‘:‘.’: Total

shares c?g £'000 £000

At 1 August 2011 97,129,465 195 30,947 31,142
Issue of shares 12,552 - - -
At 31 July 2012 97,142,017 195 30,047 31,142
Issue of shares 61,195 - 14 14
At 31 July 2013 97,203,212 195 30,961 31,156

22 Share-based payments

The charge mn relation to the share-based payments in the year ended 31 July 2013 was £767,000 (2012 £641,000} Detals of the
number of share options and the weighted average exercise price (WAEP) outstanding dunng the year are as follows

2013 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Approved share option scheme Numbrer £ Number £
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 129,056 0.880 129,056 0880
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised duning the year (24,000) 0.180 - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 105,056 1.027 129,056 0880
Exercisable at the end of the year 105,056 1.027 129,056 0880
2013 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Unapproved share option scheme Number £ Numier £
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 349,846 0.223 362,398 0223
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year {23,011) 0.115 (12,552) 0083
Lapsed durning the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 326,835 0286 349,846 0223
Exercisable at the end of the year 326,835 0286 349,846 0223
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22 Share-based payments continued

Share options exercised In the cument financial year were exercised at prices between £0 099 and £0 204 (2012 between £0 070
and £0 146) The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was £0 713 (2012 £0 50)

The options outstanding under the approved and unapproved share option schemes as at 31 July 2013 and 31 July 2012 have the
following average exercise prices and expire in the following financial years

Exercise
prica 2013 2012
Expiry £ Number Number
31 July 2013 0180 - 24,000
31 July 2015 0.180 44,335 44,335
31 July 2017 1.645 82,067 82,067
31 August 2021* 0.191 305,489 328,500

*The Pokmetnx options expire on & monthly basis up to and including August 2021

Expiry dates as standard are seven years from the vesting date Vesting cniena are tme based and contmgent on continued
employment with YouGov rather than performance based The charge In relation to share option schemes in the year ended 31 July
2013 was £nil (2012 £nil)

Dunng the year ended 31 July 2013, the Long Term incentive Plan (“LTIP") for Executive Directors, Senior Executives and
Senior Managers continugd to operate The rules goveming the LTIP are summansed m the Remuneration Report on page 29
The charge In relation to the LTIP in the year ended 31 July 2013 was £598,000 (2012 £441,000) This charge was valued using
a Monte Carlo simulation

2013 WAEP 2012 WAER
Loag Tenm tncentive Plan (LTIP) Number [ Number £
Qutstanding at the beginming of the year 6,512,167 0.000 5,956,860 0000
Granted dunng the year - - 2435477 0000
Exercised dunng the year (1,047,266} 0.000 - -
Lapsed dunng the year {457,949) 0.000 (1.880,170) 0000
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,006,952 0.000 6,512,167 0000
Exercisable at the end of the year 651,278 0000 - —

The weighted average share pnce at the date LTIP options were exercised was £0 726

During the year ended 31 July 2011, a Deferred Stock Scheme was ntroduced for Executive Directors and Serwor Managers The rules
governing the Deferred Stock Scheme are summansed in the Remuneration Report on page 29 The charge in relation to the Deferred
Stock Scheme in the year ended 31 July 2013 was £169,000 (2012 £200,000) This charge was valued using a Black-Scholes model

2013 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Deferred Stock Scheme Number £ Number £
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,500,000 0.000 1,500,000 0000
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year - - - -
Lapsed dunng the year (75,000) 0.000 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,425,000 0000 1,500,000 0000

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -
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22 Share-based payments continued

The fair value of shares and share options granted under the Deferred Stock Scheme has been calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model No perfermance conditions were included In the fair value calculation The fair value per option granted and the

assumptions made are listed below

Black-Scholes model ptions
Share pnce (p) 40
Exercise price (p) -
Estimated bfe (years) 30
Risk-free interest rate n/a
Drvidend yield 0 0%
Volatility n/a
Basic fair vaiue of option (o) 40
Options granted/shares awarded 1,500,000
Farr value of share ophons (p) 40
Vesting adjustment factor 100%
Total scheme adjusted fair value (Em) 06
Performance penod (years) 30
Annual Income statement charge to be applied over the performance penod (Em) 02
The aggregate profit and loss charge for share-based payments Is disclosed 1in Note 1
23 Leasing commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease rentals to be paid under ron-cancellable operating leases at 31 July 2013 are as follows
31 July 2013 31 July 2012

Land and Land and

- G OE %
In one year or less 1,294 106 1,160 30
Between one and five years 2,404 127 3,271 163
In five years or more - - 32 —

3,698 233 4,463 253
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24 Capital commitments
At 31 July 2013, the Group had capital commitments of £71,000 (2012 £74,000)

25 Major non-cash transactions

The Group entered Into a barter transaction with Centaur plc, a joint venture partner, to exchange the prowision of Brandindex content
for advertising within tts publications for £nil (2012 £327,000)

The Group also entered into barter transactions with three third parties in the Middle East with a total value of £748,000 (2012 £427,000)
to exchange the provision of market research for advertising on television, on websites and In magazines

26 Transactions with Directors and other related parties
Other than emoluments there have been no transactions with Directors dunng the year

At 31 July 2013 Privero Capital Advisors Inc, a company 25% owned by Stephan Shakespeare, an Executive Director of YouGav plc,
owed YouGov £205,000 (2012 £192,000) The moverment in the year relates to foreign exchange revaluation

Dunng the year ended 31 Juty 2012, YouGov invested £100.000 in retum for an addiional 5% stake in CoEditor Limited, a company
owned by Doughty Media 2 (owned by Stephan Shakespeare), Increasing 1ts holding to 30% The pnce paid for the additional
investment was amved at using the net present value of the projected future cash flows of CoEditor At 31 July 2013 CoEditor Lunited
owed YouGov £646,000 (2012 £100,000), the movement in the year relates 1o additional funding of working capital

Trading between YouGov plc and group compantes 1s excluded from the related party note as this has been eliminated on
consolidation

27 Events after the reporting period

On 6 September 2013, YouGov plc purchased a 40% sharehalding in Doughty Media 2, a company 60% owned by Stephan
Shakespeare, an Executive Director of YouGov plc, fora purchase pnce of £497,000 £37,000 of this was paid in cash on completion,
the remaining baiance will be payable in YouGav shares in February 2015, contingent on the achievement of certain performance
cntena  The book value of assets and habilities as at the completion date was not matena! The purchase price allocation has not yet
been compileted

Doughty Media 2 has a 69% shareholding in CoEditer Limited and following this purchase YouGov now effectively controls 57% of
CoEdstor Limited

No other matenal events have taken place subseguent to the reporting date
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Financial slalenwnts
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of YouGov plc on the
Parent Company Financial Staterments

We have audited the parert company financia! statements of YouGov plc for the year ended 31 July 2013, wituch compnse the Balance
Sheet, the Accounting Policies and the related notes  The financial reporting framework that has been applied n therr preparation 1S
applicable law and United Kmgdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explamed mare fully m the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
company financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and farr view QOur responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opirien on the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemat:onal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethica! Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body n accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 1€ of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose We do not, In gving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other persen to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writng

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audtt involves obtamning evidence about the amaunts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently
appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigruficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information n the Annual Report and
Accounts to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the mplications for our report,

Oplnion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financiz| statements

» give a true and farr view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 July 2013,
» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinlon on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
In our opinion the information gven n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent company financal statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financiat statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothung to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In
our opmion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeqguate for our audt have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

s the parent company financal statements are ot in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
« we have not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our aucit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial staterments of YouGov plc for the year ended 31 July 2013

David A. Snell (Senlor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

14 October 2013
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 July 2013

Note £1000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 4 296 180
Tangible assets 5 176 188
Investments 5 36,751 37,103

37,223 37471
Current assets
Debtors 7 27,641 21,830
Cash at bank and » hand 1,486 1,193
29,127 23,023

Creditors amounts faling due within one year 8 {12,170) (9,419}
Net current assets 16,957 13,604
Total assets less current habilities 54,180 51,075
Browsion for labilibes 9 (1,969) (1,678)
Net assets 52,211 49,397
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1 1958 195
Share premium 11 30,961 30,947
Merger reserve 10 9,239 9,239
Profit and loss account 10 11,816 9,016
Total Shareholders’ funds 10 52,211 49,397

The accounting pohcies and notes on pages 74 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 Cctober 2013, and signed on its behalf by

Alan Newman

Chief Financial Officer
14 October 2013
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Financial statements

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 July 2013

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are drawn up I accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
accounting standards drawn from UK generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) The financial statements are prepared
under the histonical cost convention modified for farr values and on the going concem basis

The Company has also taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash flow staterment under the terms of FRS1 “Cash Flow
Statement (revised 1996)" The cash flows of the Company are disclosed as part of the consohdated cash flow statement within the
consalidated financial statements

The particutar accounting policies adopted are detalled below They have all been applied consistently throughout the current year and
the pnor year

The pnor year balance sheet has been restated to reclassify panel lability of £1,678,000 from creditors amounts faling due within one
year to provision for liabilihies, which aligns the Company treatment with that of the Group

Related parhes
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRSS “Related party disclosures” and has not reported transactions
with fellow Group undertakings Further details are included in Note 26 of the consolidated financial statements

Panel incentive costs

The Company mvites consumer panel members ta fill out surveys for a cash or points based incentive Although these amounts are not
paid unti a pre-determined target value has accrued on a paneliist’s account, an assessment of incentives Iikely to be paid 1s made and
I1s recognised as a cost of sale In the penod in which the serice 1S provided This assessment now takes into account the likely savings
expected from the pnze draw

Share-based payments

All goods and services received In exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their farr values Where
employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the farr values of employees’ services are determined indirectly by reference
to the farr value of the instrument granted to the employee This fair value 1s appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets)

Where equity-setiled share-based payments relate to employees of the Company these are ulimately recogrised as an expense in the
profit and loss account with a comesponding credit to the profit and loss reserve Where equity-settied share-based payments relate to
employees of subsidianes of the Company these are treated as a capital contnbution, Increasing the value of the investment in the
subsidiary with a corresponding credit to the profit and loss reserve

If vesting penods or other non-market vesting condtions apply, the expense s allocated over the vesting penod, based on the best
avalable estmate of the number of share options expected to vest Estimates are revised subsequently Iif there 1s any indicabion that
the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estmates Any cumulative adjustment pnor to vesting 1s recognised
i the current penod  No adjustment 1s made to any expense recognised n pror peniads If share options that have vested are

not exercised

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds receved net of attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital, and where
approprate share premium

Intangible fixed asset

Panel acquisiion costs reflect the direct, external cost of recruiing new panel members A formula based on panel churn for the
preceding 12 manths determines the element which is enhancement and that which 1s maintenance Cnly enhancement is capitalsed
as cost to the Company less accumulated amortisation Amortisation 1s charged so as to wnte off the panel acquisition Costs over three
years, this being the Directors’ estimate of the average active e of a panel member

Trademark costs reflect the direct cost of trademarks acquired to protect the YouGov brand and its products Amortisation 1S not
charged as trademarks are Infinite In therr longevity The Company conducts an annual impaiment review (o ensure all trademarks
are carmed at appropnate values
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Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of the onginal purchase or development, net of accumulated depreciation and any provision
for impaiment

Depreciation 1s calculated to wite down the cost less estmated residual value of all tangible fixed assets by annual instalments over
thelr estimated useful economic ives The rates generally applicable are

Leasehold property and improvements Life of the lease
Fixtures and fitings on a reducing balance basis 25%
Computer software and hardware on a straight-line basis 33%
Software development costs on a siraight-iine basis 33%

Costs that are directly attnbutable to the development of new business application software and which are incurred dunng the penocd
pnar to the date the software 1s placed into operational use are capitalised as software development costs External costs and internal
costs are capitalised to the extent they generate future economic benefit for the business, whilst internal costs are only capitalised if they
are ncremental to the Group  Once the new business application software 1s operational it 1$ depreciated at the rates set out In the
above table

Research and development

Research expenditure 1s charged to profits in the penod in which it is Incurred Software development costs Incurred on specific
projects are recognised to the extent that they comply with the requirements of SSAP 13,1 e when recoverabilty can be assessed with
reasonable certanty and amortsed in ine with the expected sales ansing from the projects All other development costs are wntten off
in the year of expenditure

Investments

Investments are included at cost less provisions for impawrment At each balance sheet date, the Directors review the carrying values
of 1its INvestments to determine whether there 15 any indication that the assets have suffered an impairment loss Whenever there 1s an
indication that the asset may be imparred an impaiment loss 1s recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

Leased assets — operating leases
Operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax I1s recognised on all timing difierences where the transactions or events that give the Company an obligation to pay more
tax i the future, or a nght to pay less tax in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised only
when, on the basis of all avallable ewdence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against
which to recover camed forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underiying timing differences can be deducted
Deferred tax 1s measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date The deferred
tax provision 1s held at its current value and not discounted

Financial assets
Financial assets are divided into the followang categones loans and recevables and avalable-for-sale financial assets Financial assets
are assigned to the different categones by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which they were acquired

All financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade receivables are recognised mitially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective iInterest method,
less provision for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recewvables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal tems of the recevables Significant financial difficuties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more
than 30 days overdue) are considered indicatars ihat the trade recenable 1s imparred The amount of the provision 1s the difference
petween the asset’s camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest
rate The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recognised In
the consohdated income statement within cperating expenses When a trade recervable 1s uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the
allowance account for trade receivables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited agamnst operating
expenses in the consolidated income statement
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Financial statements

Accounting Policies continued

Loans and recevables are non-denvatve financial assets with fixed or determmable payments that are not quoted In an active market
Trade recevables and other financial assets are classified as loans and recevables Loans and recevables are measured subsequent
to intial recognition at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less proviston for imparment Any change in their value
through impairment or reversal of Impairment 1S recognised n the consolidated income statement

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either designated in this category or not classified 1n any of the
other categones

Provision agamst trade recevables 1s made when there 1s cbjective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due to t 1n accordance with the onginal terms of those recewvables The amount of the wnte-down is determined as the difference
between the asset's carmying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at each reporting date

A financial asset is derecognised only where the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire or the financial asset 1S
transferred and that transfer qualifies for derecogruition A financial asset is transferred if the contractual nghts to receive the cash flows
of the asset have been transferred or the Company retains the contractual nghts to receve the cash flows of the asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients A financial asset that is transferred qualifies for derecogniion if
the Company transfers substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or if the Company neither retains nor transfers
substantially all the nsks and rewards if ownership but does transfer control of that asset

Financial labilities
Financial labilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Financial habilities are assigned to the different
categones by management on initial recogniion, depending on the pumpose far which they were acquired

Financal iabihties are cbligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recogrised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade payables are recognised mitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
They are classified as current habiliies if payment is due within one year or less I not, they are presented as non-current habiites

Borrowings and lease liabilites are inally recorded at the fair valug which is typically the proceeds receved, net of any I1ssue costs
and subsequently camed at amortised cost Finance charges are accounted for on an effective interest method and are added 10 the
carmying value of the instrument to the extent that they are not settlied In the penod in which they anse

A financial habilty 1s derecognised only when the obligation 1s extinguished, that is, when the obligation is discharged or cancelled
or expires
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Financial Statements %
Notes to the Company Financial Statements g
for the year ended 31 July 2013 ¢
1 Profit of parent company
The parent company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own profit and loss
account in these financial statements The parent company's profit for the year was £2,499,000 (2012 £2,020,000) This includes audit
fees for the Company of £22,000 (2012 £22,000)
2 Staff numbers and costs —
Staff costs (including Directors) charged to administration expenses during the year were as follows 3
2013 2012 i
£'000 £000 c
Wages and salanes 6,847 6,249 %
Social secunty costs 771 708 9
Share-based payments (Note 12} 364 316 c
Pension costs 55 56
Other benefits 44 33
8,081 7.362
The average monthly number of employees of the Company dunng the year was as follows g
[
2013 2012 E
Number Number g
Key management personnel 10 8 &
Admimistration and operations 126 121
136 129
Specific disclosures In relation to compensation for key management personnel (defined as Board and Dvsional, Product and Function
Heads) who held office dunng the year was as follows
2013 2012
£000 £000 -
Short-term employee benefits 1,240 1248 %
Share-based payments 312 231 :E:
1,552 1,479 I;
Disclosure of Directors’ remuneration including share options are included in the Remuneraton Report on pages 291031 -'é
3 Dividend E

On 17 December 2012, a marden final dividend 1n respect of the year ended 31 July 2012 of £479,000 (0 5p per share) was paid to
shareholders A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 July 2013 of 0 6p per share, amounting to a total dividend of £577,000 15 to
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 11 December 2013 These financial statements do not reflect this proposed

dvidend payable

4 Intangible assets

Panel
acquisition
costs Trademarks Total
£000 £°000 £'000
Cost
At 1 August 2012 352 116 468
Additions 173 11 184
At 31 July 2013 525 127 652
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2012 288 - 288
Prowided in the year 68 - 68 g
At 31 July 2013 356 - 356 §
Net book amount at 31 July 2013 169 127 296 E
Net book amount at 31 July 2012 64 116 180 £
3
T
o
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Financial statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

5 Tangible assets
mn:: m property and
fithh and hardware f Total
£ £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 August 2012 334 741 176 1,251
Prowvided In the year 3 88 - N
Disposals - (2 - (2)
At 31 July 2013 337 827 176 1,340
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2012 253 634 176 1,083
Prowvided in the year 20 81 - 101
Disposals - - - -
At 31 July 2013 273 715 176 1,164
Net book amount at 31 July 2013 64 112 - 176
Net book amount at 31 July 2012 81 107 - 188
6 Fixed asset investments
Total fixed asset investments compnse
L et gt -
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 August 2012 35,751 600 752 37,103
Share-based payments charge - - 369 368
Impairment (721) - - (721}
At 31 July 2013 35,030 600 1,121 36,751
The value of nvestments 1s determined on the basis of the cost to the Company
The Company’s principal trading subsidianes and joint ventures are listed in Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements
7 Dehtors
3}% 3%
Trade debtors 4420 3,304
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 18,711 14,827
Amounts owed by associates 646 100
Other debtors 121 54
Prepayments and accrued income 2,537 2,069
Defemred taxation 1,206 1476
27,641 21,830

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of payment and are repayable on demand
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8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

o
] Foo0
Trade creditors 882 794
Amaunts owed to Group undertakings 5,861 5414
Taxation and social secunty 1,030 856
Other creditors 134 44
Accruals and deferred mcome 4,263 231
12,170 9418
Some amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of payment and are repayable on demand
9 Provisions for liabilities
tncentives
£000
Balance at 1 August 2012 (restated) 1,678
Provided dunng the year 2,340
Utiised dunng the year (2,049)
Balance at 31 July 2013 1,969
10 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Called-up Share Merger Profit and loss
200 s 000 o0 £5
Balance at 1 August 2011 195 30,947 9,239 6,368 46,749
Changes in equity for 2012
Profit for the year - - - 2,020 2,020
Total recognised income for the year - - - 2,020 2,020
Share-based payments - - - 628 €28
Balance at 31 July 2012 195 30,047 9,239 9,016 49,397
Changes in equity for 2013
Profit for the year - - - 2,499 2,499
Total recognised income for the year - - - 2,499 2,499
Issue of shares - 14 - - 14
Dimmdends paid - - - (479) (479)
Share-based payments - - - 780 780
Balance at 31 July 2013 185 30,961 9,239 11,816 52,211
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Financial statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

11 Called up share capital

The Company only has one class of share Par value of each Ordinary Share 1s 0 2p All1issued shares are fully paid

Share Share

Number of cgilzi prermium Total

shares '000 £'000 £'000

At 1 August 2011 97,129,465 195 30,947 31,142
Issue of shares 12,552 - - -
At 31 July 2012 97,142,017 185 30,947 31,142
Issue of shares 61,195 - 14 14
At 31 July 2013 97,203,212 195 30,961 31,156

12 Share-based payments

The charge Included n the profit and loss account of the Company 1s £364,000 (2012 £316,000) The increase In Investment in respect

of subsidianes 1s £369,000 (2012 £311,000)

Detalls of the number of share options and the weighted average exercise pnce (WAEP) outstanding dunng the year are as follows

2013 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Approved share option scheme Number £ Number £
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 129,056 0.880 129,056 0880
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year (24,000) 0.180 - -
Lapsed dunng the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 105,056 1.027 129,056 0880
Exercisable at the end of the year 108,056 1.027 120,056 0880
2013 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Unapproved share option scheme Number 3 Number £
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 21,346 1.645 21,346 1645
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year - - - -
Lapsed duning the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 21,346 1.645 21,346 1645
Exercisable at the end of the year 21,348 1.645 21,346 1645

The share prce at the date of exercise of options was £0 725 The options outstanding under the approved and unapproved
share option schemes as at 31 July 2013 and 31 July 2012, have the following average exercise prices and expire in the following

financial years

Exercise
price 2013 2012
Expiry £ Number Number
31 July 2013 0180 - 24,000
31 July 2015 0180 44,335 44,335
31 July 2017 1.645 82,067 82,087

Expiry dates as standard are seven years from the vesting date Vesting cntena are time based and contingent on continued

employment with YouGov rather than performance based
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Duning the year ended 31 July 2013, the Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP™) for Executive Directors, Senior Executives and Senwor

Managers continued to operate Detalls of the number of share options and the weighted average exercise pnce (WAEP) outstanding
dunng the year are as foilows

213 WAEP 2012 WAEP
Long term incentive plan (LTIP) Number £ Number £
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 3,122,569 0000 3,330,757 0000
Granted dunng the year - - 1,028,822 0000
Exercised during the year (393,431) 0.000 - -
Lapsed dunng the year (54,594) 0.000 (1,236,990) 0000
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,674,544 0000 3,122,589 0000
Exercisable at the end of the year 562,170 0000 - -

The weighted average share pnce at the dates ophons were exercised was £0 703

Dunng the year ended 31 July 2011, a Deferred Stock Scheme was introduced for Executive Directars and Senior Managers
Details of the number of share options and the weighted average exercise pnce (WAEP) outstanding dunng the year are as follows

2013 WAEP 2012WAEP

Deferred Stock Scheme Number £ Number £
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 712,500 00600 712,500 0000
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Lapsed dunng the year {75,000) 0000 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 637,500 0 000 712,500 0000

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

13 Leasing commitments

The minimum lease rentals to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 July 2013 are as follows

2013 2012
butiding Ot ki Otrer
£ £000 E‘% £000
In one year or less 303 30 300 24
Between one and five years 758 66 910 73
In five years or more - - - —
1,061 96 1210 a7

14 Major non-cash transactions

The Company entered into a barter transaction with Centaur pic, a joint venture partner, 10 exchange the provision of BrandIndex
content for advertising within its publications for £rul (2012 £327,000)
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Addional information

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of YouGov PLC will be held at 50 Featherstone Strest, London EC1Y 8RT
on 11 December 2013 at 12 30pm to consider and, f thought fit, pass the resolutions below

Resolution 10 will be proposed as a special resolution All other resolutions wall be proposed as ordinary resolutions

Ordi
1

w

- @ un b

nary Resolutions

To receve the Company’s annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 July 2013, together with the Directars' report and the
auditors’ report on those accounts

To approve the Directors’ remuneration report set out in the annual report and accounts for the financial year ended 31 July 2013

To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the
next general meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid

To authonise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors
To reappoint Roger Parry as a Director retinng by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association
To reappoint Ben Elliot as a Director retinng by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association

To declare a final dividend of 0 6p per ordinary share to be paid on Monday 16 December 2013 to those shareholders on the
register of members as at Fnday 6 December 2013

To generally and unconditionally authonse the Directors (in substitution for all subsisting authenties to the extent unused, other than
in respect of any allotments made pursuant to offers or agreements made prior to the passing of this resolution) for the purposes of
section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to exercise ali the powers of the Company to allot shares n the Company ("Shares”) and
grant nghts to subscnbe for, or to convert any secunty Into, Shares ("Subscnphon or Conversion Rights”) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £9,750 provided that this authonty shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general mesting of the
Company after the passing of this resolution or on 31 December 2014, whichever 1s the earlier, save that the Company may, before
such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might reguire Shares to be allotted or Subscription or Conversion Rights to
be granted after such exprry, including an offer or agreement to allot Shares to Stephan Shakespeare and Rosamund Shakespeare
pursuant to and conditronal on the passing of Resolution 9 below, and the Directors may allot Shares and grant Subscnption or
Conversion Rights in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if thus authonty had not so expired

That the proposed acquisition by the Company of all the shares in Doughty Media 2 Limited (“DM2") held by Stephan Shakespeare
and Rosamund Shakespeare (the “Shares”) (representing the 60% of the entire issued share capital of DM2 not held by the
Company at the date of the Notce) for an aggregate consideration of up to £744,000 (the “Consideration”) 1o be settled by the
issuance of ordinary shares tn the Company (the “Transaction”), being a substantial property transaction Involving Stephan
Shakespeare, a Director of the Company at the date of the Notice, be approved pursuant to and for the purposes of section 190 of
the Companies Act 2006 and that the Directors of the Company (other than Stephan Shakespeare) (the “Independent Directors”)
be and are hereby authonsed to complete the Transaction and all related matters on such terms as the Independent Directors
consider reasonable and In the best interests of the Company and 1ts shareholders and to do all such other things as they consider
reasonably necessary, expedient or desirable to facilitate the sale and purchase of the Shares
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Mvarnnowr

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution which will be proposed as a Special Resolution
Special Resolution

10 That conditional on the passing of Resolution 8 above, that the Directors be and are hereby empowered In accordance with section
570 and section 573 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot equity secunties {withtin the meaning of section 560 of that Act) for cash,
either pursuant to the authonty conferred by Resolution 8 or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as f section 561(1) of that Act did
nat apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be imited to

{a) the allotment of equity secunties in connection with an offer of such secunties

V)] to holders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearty as may be practicable) to therr respective holdings of such
shares, and

Nnarativin raviow

)] to holders of other secunties as required by the nghts of those secunties or as the directors otherwise consider
necessary, but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient
In relation to treasury shares, fractonal entitiernents, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in or under
the Yaws of any temtory or the requirements of any regulatory body or any stock exchange, and

(b} the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) above) of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £6,750, and shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company after the
passing of this resolution or on 31 December 2014, whichever is the earher, save that the Company may before such
expiry make offers or agreements which would or might reguire equity secunties to be allotted after such expiry,
including an offer or agreement to allot Shares to Stephan Shakespeare and Rosamund Shakespeare pursuant to
and conditional on the passing of Resolution 9 below, and the directars may allot equity secunties In pursuance of
any such offers or agreements as If the power conferred hereby had not expired

NRnrvarnanca

By order of the Board

Alan Newman
Company Secretary

14 October 2013

Finanrial etatamante

Registered Office
50 Featherstone Street, London EC1Y 8RT
Registered in England and Wales No 3607311
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Additional information

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Notes

1 Shareholders are entitied to 2ppont a ;mxytoexercmaﬂoranyofﬁernghmtoaﬁendElﬂdmspeakardwhaonﬂwbet‘elfalmeﬂeenng A shareholder may appont more than one proxy in relaton to
meAnnLalGenetalMee!angpruwdedﬂnteachpruxylsappamedloe;erusemeng‘ﬂsaﬁad'nedloadlﬂemmreusharesheldbyﬁ'alsrmeholder A proxy need not be a sharehoider of tha
Company Apmxyformuhnchmaybeusedwrmkeswhappmnmemandgweprmynstmcnmsacwnpanmhsmme If you do ok have a proxy form and beheve that you should have one or f you
require addinonal forms. please contact Nevile Regrstrars at Newilie House 18 Laurel Lane Halesowen West Midlands BE3 30A

2 To be valid any peaosy form of other instment appaNDng 8 proxXy must e recenvad by post o (dunng narmal business hours only) by hand at Nevile Regrstrars, Newville House 16 Laurel Lane Halesowen
West Mdizands B3 3DA na later than 12 30pm on 9 December 2013

3 The retum of a completed proxy form other such nstrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction {as descnbed w1 paragraph 6 below) will not prevent a shanehokder attending the Annual General Meeting and
voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

4 In accordance with Regulabon 41 of the Uncertrficated Secuntes Regulatons 2001 1o be entilied to atiend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the
Campany of the votes they may cast) sharehoiders must be registered nthe Regsster of Members of the Company at 6 00pm on 9 December 2013 {or, in the event of any adipumment, § 00pm on the
date which s wa days before the time of the adpumed meetng) Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadiine shall be disregarded i determining the nghts of any person 1o attend and
vote at the meeting

5 CREST mermbers wha wish Lo apposni a proxy of prosees through the CREST electronic proxy sppantment service may do 50 by using the procedures descnbed i the CREST Manual CREST personal
members or other CREST sponsored members and these CREST members who have apponied a service provider(s) shoukd refer 10 therr CREST sponsor of vobng senice prowder(s) who wll be abla
to take the appropnate achon on thesr behalf

i} In order for & proxXy appantment or Nstructon made using the CREST semvioe to be valid the appropnate CREST message (a "CREST Proxy Instructon”) must be property authenbcated in accordance
with the specifications of Euroclear UK & Ireland Limded (the operator of the CREST system} and mist contain the infermaton required for such nstructon as descrbed n the CREST Manual The
message regarcless of whether it constiutes the apposntment of a proy or 1 an amendment ip the NSInChon given 1o & previousty appointed proxy must n arder to be vaiid be ransmitted so 2 to be
receved by the ssuer's agent (ID 7RA11) by 12 30pm on 8 December 2013 For this purpose the trme of receipt will belakenbbemume(asdelemnedbymeumesxanpappiedmlhemessageby
the CREST Applicaton Host) fram whch the ssuer's agent s able to retneva the message by enquiy i@ CREST i the manner prescnbed by CREST After this ume any change of mstructions to proxes
appainted through CREST should be comemunicated 1o the appainiee through ather means

7 CREST members and, wher applicable thewr CREST sponsors or voling service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not make available specal procedures in CREST for any
particular messaga Normal system timengs and imitabons wil therefore apply in relabion to the nout of CREST Proxy Instructens Itis the responsibility of the CREST member cancemed to taka {or f the
CREST member s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting sanice provider $o procurs that his CREST sponsor or voling serce provider(s) take(s)) such acton as
shall be necessary to ensure that a message |s ransmitted by means of the CREST systern by any parbcutar time In this connection CREST members and where applicable ther CREST sponsors or
voting system semace providers are refered n parbcular o those sectons of the CREST Manual conceming prachcal mitations of the CREST systern and tmings

8 The Comparty may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instnuction in the circumstances set out in Reguiaton 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Secunbes Reguiatons 2001

In order 1o faciitate voting by comporate representatives at the meeing arangerments will be put m place at the meeting so that: (i} f a corporate shareholder has appointed the chairman of the meeting as
its corporate representative with instzuchons to vote on a poll in accordance with the drections of all of the other corporate representatives for that shareholder at the meeting then on a pall those corporate
representatives will gve voting directions to the chaiman and the charman will vote {oc withhold a vote) as Corporate representatve In accordance with those direcbons and (i) ¥ more than one comporate
sepresantatve for the same corporate sharehoider attends the meeting but the corporate sharehoider has not appointed the chamman of the meeting as it comporata representative a designated cofporate
representative will be nomenated from those comporate representatves who attend who will vote on a poll and the other corporate representaives will gve voing drecbons (o that designatad corporate
representative Corporate sharstkders are referred 1o the guidance 1ssued by the Instiute of Chartered Secrelanes and Admnistralors on proxies and corporale represeniamves (www 1csa org uk) for
further details of this procedure The gusdance incluces a sample form of represeniaton letier if the chairman is bemg appainted as descnbed n iy above

Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting
Resolubon 8 {Approval of the acquisiton of subsiantal non cash asset from a Direcior)
Background

Opgram developed in parnershup with CoEditor Limted & a new technology for recording and measunng opinions that our panellsts choose i offer On 6 Saptember 2013 after the end of the financial year

& 40% shareholding was acauired 1n Doughty Media 2 Limited (‘DM2") which has a 63% shareholding in CoEditor Limited the company which has developed the Opigram senace and i which YouGov already
gwned a 29 6% shareholding Fallowing this purchase YouGov o effectvely controls 57% of CoEditor Lutviad The shareholding was purchasad from the director of Co-Editer respansible for the Omgram
development who has become an employee of YouGov following the transaction The maximur purchase price for the sharsholding acquired in DM2 s £497 000 of which £37 D00 was pexd in cashon
completion

The remanning balance wil be payable by the ssuance of ordinary shares in the Company in February 2015 with the majonty {up 19 £348 004) being contingent on tha achievement of certan performance cntena
relatng 1o the delvery of expacied benefits ansing from the iIncorporalion of the Opigram senace within YouGov's onting presence The nurmber of ordinary shares to be ssued in Febnuary 2015 will be calculated
by reference to their average prce over the five dealing days pnor to 6 September 2013

Prncipal terms of the acquesibon

The renaining 60% shareholding in DM2 15 held by Stephan Shakespeare {CEQ of YouGov pic) and his wife Rosarmund Shakespeare The Directors of YouGav {other than Stephan Shakespeess who has been
excluded from these discussions due 1o his confict) believe that it s YouGav's bestinterests o ‘take ffl control of the Opigram technology They have therefore approved an offer to purchase the 60%
sharehokding i DM2 held by Stephan and Rosamund Shakespeare for 8 maximum pnce of £744 000 This is on an equivalent valuation and terms to those agreed for the purchase atready made of the 40%
shareholding in DM2 The consideration will be settied bry the issuance of ordirary shares »n the Company in February 2015 with Lp o £522 000 of this being contngent upon the achievement of the performance
cntena described above The imphed valuation of CoEdilor 15 also equivalent to that upon which YouGov previously acquired its 2% shareholding As & result of the proposed ransaction YouGov would
effectvely control 88% of CoEditor Limited The Directors (other than Stephan Shakespeare) cansider these terms 1o ba farr and reasonable and In the best nterests of the Company As this fransacbon wauld be a
substantal property ransaction with a Director as defined by 5190 of the Companies Act 2006 the approval of the shareholders of the Company 15 required by the Act and 1s therefora being sought by means of
thus resolubon

Rasolution 10 (Statutary pre-emption nghis)

\Under section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 when new shares arg aflofied they must first be offered 1o exsting shareholders pro rta 10 ther holdings This special resolution renews the authonties prevously
granted to the Directors o {a) aflot shares of the Company In connection with a nghts issue or ather pre-emplive offer and {p) ctherwise allot shares of the Comparny or sell treasury shares for cash up toan
aggregate nomenal value of £9 750 (representing m accordance with mstitubonal ivesior guidelines apprasmataly 5% of he share capital in ssue as at 31 October 2013 (being the last practcable cate pnor 1o
the publicabon of this nabce)) as i the pre-empbon nghts of Section 561 dicd not apply The autherity granted by this resoluton shall expire at the conclusion of the next anrual general meetng of the Company after
the passing of this resolution or on 31 December 2014 whichever is the earlier

ﬁenotesabmmgmana&plarﬂuunmmpmmsedresohmcws Resciutons 1 1o 8 are proposed a5 ordinary resohmons, Thes means that for each of thosa resolutions 10 be passed mare than half of the
votes cast must be n favour of the resolubon Resolubon 10 1s propasec 83 a special esolution This means that for each resciutian to be passed at least three-quarters of the votes cast must be in favour
of the resalution




Designed and produced by Radley Yeldar wwwry com using the paperless proofing system Wizardry
This ratenial used in the publication of this document 1s carbon balanced

Printed on FSC cerufied paper
This docurment s printed on matenal manufactured at 2 mill which 15 15014001 accredited




YouGov plc
50 Featherstone Street
London EC1Y 8RT

T +44 {0)20 7012 6000
F +44 (0)20 7012 6001

yougov.com




